
Conference Call Number: 1-888-808-6929 
Public Participant Code: 915042# 

Oregon Health Policy Board 
AGENDA 

September 12, 2017 
OHSU Center for Health & Healing 

3303 SW Bond Ave, 3rd floor Rm. #4 
8:30 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 

 
 

 # Time Item Presenter Purpose 

O
ld

 B
u

sin
ess 

1 8:30 
Welcome, Minutes Approval, 
Calendar Review 

Zeke Smith, Chair  Action  

2 8:40 OHA Report 
Pat Allen, Executive Director, 
OHA 

Update & 

Informational 

3 8:50 
Committee Liaison & Consult 
Updates 

Board Members 
Update & 

Informational 

4 9:10 

OHPB Committee Planning: 
 

 Pharmacy Collaborative 
 
 

 Equity Policy Committee 

Jeff Scroggin, OHA, Policy 
Analyst 
 
Trevor Douglas, Pharmacy 
Manager, OHA 
 
Leann Johnson, Director 
Office of Equity & Inclusion, 
OHA 
 
Oscar Arana, OHPB Equity 
Policy Committee Liaison 

Update & 
Potential Vote 

5 9:45 Public Testimony  Chair Smith 
Public 

Testimony 

 6 10:00 Break 
N

ew
 B

u
sin

ess 

7 10:15 
Health Information Technology 
Oversight Council (HITOC) 
Report & Recommendations  

Susan Otter, Health 
Information Technology 
Director, OHA 
 
Erick Doolen, COO, Pacific 
Source, HITOC Chair &  
 
Amy Henninger, MD, Deputy 
Medical Director, 
Multnomah County, HITOC 
Vice-Chair 
 
Greg Van Pelt, Oregon 
Health Leadership Council 

Informational 
Update & 

Potential Vote 



Conference Call Number: 1-888-808-6929 
Public Participant Code: 915042# 

8 11:15 CCO 2.0 Planning & Discussion  
Discussion & 

Planning 

 9 12:00 Adjourn Chair Smith  

 
Next meeting:  
October 3, 2017 
OHSU Center for Health & Healing 
3303 SW Bond Ave, 3rd floor Rm. #4 
8:30 a.m. to 12:30 p.m. 
 

Everyone is welcome to the Oregon Health Policy Board meetings. For questions about 
accessibility or to request an accommodation, please call 541-999-6983 or write 
HealthPolicyBoard.Info@state.or.us. Requests should be made at least 48 hours prior to 
the event. Documents can be provided upon request in an alternate format for 
individuals with disabilities or in a language other than English for people with limited 
English skills. To request a document in another format or language please call 541-999-
6983 or write to HealthPolicyBoard.Info@state.or.us 



Oregon Health Policy Board  
DRAFT August 1, 2017 

OHSU Center for Health & Healing 
3303 SW Bond Ave, 3rd floor Rm. #4 

8:30 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 
 

 Item 

OHPB video and audio recording  

To view the video, or listen to the audio link, of the OHPB meeting in its entirety click here. 

Agenda items can be reviewed at time stamp listed in the column below. 

Welcome and Call To Order, Chair Zeke Smith 

Present:  

Board members present: Chair Zeke Smith, Vice-Chair Carla McKelvey(Phone), Brenda Johnson, 

Felisa Hagins, John Santa, Karen Joplin, David Bangsberg, Oscar Arana 

The Board voted to approve the July minutes. 

Director’s Report, Leslie Clement, OHA 

Leslie gave update on executive recruitments. She relayed an update from the 

Public Health Director, Lillian Shirley, about the Portland Water Bureau and gave an 

update on OHP eligibility and enrollment.   

00:06:36 

OHPB Committee Liaison Update 

Each liaison or consultant gave a brief update on their respective committee, 

collaborative or workgroup.  

00:31:27 

https://echo360ess.ohsu.edu:8443/ess/portal/section/b797fe67-ce31-4277-b211-8612761c05ce


Oregon Health Policy Board  
DRAFT August 1, 2017 

OHSU Center for Health & Healing 
3303 SW Bond Ave, 3rd floor Rm. #4 

8:30 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 
 

 

 
Next meeting:  
September 12, 2017 
OHSU Center for Health & Healing 
3303 SW Bond Ave, 3rd floor Rm. #4 
8:30 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 

Federal Health Policy Update, Leslie Clement, OHA 

 

Leslie gave update on potential federal policy changes and Oregon’s current status. 

She noted the Children’s Health Insurance Program is up for re-authorization in 

September; OHA will monitor the outcome. 

 

00:42:08 

Action Plan for Health, Steph Jarem, OHA 

Steph presented the draft action plan for health and the Board discussed the plan 

and potential future actions. 

01:08:16 

Public Testimony  

John Mullin – Oregon Law Center 

Art Suchorzewski – FamilyCare Inc.  

Bill Murray – FamilyCare Inc.  

 

00:54:36 

Adjourn 



1 
 

 2017-2018 OHPB CALENDAR 
DRAFT 

Updated 8/7/17 
 
 

Month 
Agenda Items (Chair’s welcome, Director’s 
report, public testimony and breaks are 
standing items) 

Board Priority Area Reports 
 

Legislative Mandates 

Jan 19, 2017 
 

 Retreat 

 Waiver Update 

 Federal Policy Update 

 Action Plan for Health Discussion 

 CCO 2.0 Planning 

1. High Cost Drugs 
2. Accelerated CCO Integration 
3. Health Systems Transparency & 

Accountability 
4. Health Equity 
5. CCO Monitoring & Oversight 

-CCO Quarterly 
Legislative 
Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Legislature in Session 

Feb 7, 2017 

 Legislative Update 

 Action Plan for Health Discussion 
 

All  

Mar 7, 2017 

 Legislative Update 

 OHPB Protocols 

 OHPB Committee Work Planning 

All  

April 4, 2017 

 Legislative Update 

 Federal Policy Update 

 High Cost Drugs Discussion 

 OHPB Committee Work Planning 

High Cost Drugs, Monitoring & 
Oversight, Health Equity 

-PHAB Annual 
Report 

May 2, 2017 

 Legislative Update 

 Federal Policy Update 

 Hospital Community Benefits 

Health Systems Transparency & 
Accountability, Health Equity 

-Community 
Benefit Report 



2 
 

Month 
Agenda Items (Chair’s welcome, Director’s 
report, public testimony and breaks are 
standing items) 

Board Priority Area Reports 
 

Legislative Mandates 

June 6, 2017 

 Legislative Update 

 Federal Policy Update 

 Action Plan for Health Discussion 
 

All 
-CCO Quarterly 
Legislative 
Report 

July 11, 2017 

 Legislative Recap 

 Health Systems Transformation Metrics 
Report 

 Hospital Transformation Performance 
Program Report 

 CCO Quarterly Report 
 

 

CCO Monitoring & Oversight, Health 
System Transparency & 
Accountability, Equity 

-CCO Metrics 
Report 
-Hospital 
Transformation 
Performance 
Program 
Report 
-CCO Quarterly 
Legislative 
Report  

 

August 1, 
2017 

 

 Action Plan For Health Update 
 

 
 
 

 

Health System Transparency & 
Accountability, CCO Oversight & 
Monitoring 

-Hospital 
Financial 
Report 
 

 

September 
12, 2017 

 CCO 2.0 Planning & Discussion 

 HITOC Update 

 High Cost Drugs Committee Planning 
 
 

CCO Oversight & Monitoring, Equity, 
Accelerated Integration 

-WF 
composition 
report 

 

October 3, 
2017 

 Behavioral Health Change Update 

 Workforce Committee Report 

 Health Plan Quality Metrics Status 
Update 

Accelerated integration, Health Equity  

 



3 
 

Month 
Agenda Items (Chair’s welcome, Director’s 
report, public testimony and breaks are 
standing items) 

Board Priority Area Reports 
 

Legislative Mandates 

November 7, 
2017 
 
OUT OF 
AREA 
MEETING: 
SCAPOOSE 

 Oregon Health Insurance Survey Findings 

 High Cost Drugs 

Accelerated Integration, Oversight & 
Monitoring, Equity 

 

CCO Incentive Metrics 
Report 

December 5, 
2017 

 PHAB Update (tentative) 

 CCO 2.0 Implementation Update 

 Workforce Composition & Promising 
Strategies 

Accelerated Integration, Oversight & 
Monitoring, Equity 

-Hospital 
Community 
Benefit Report 
 

 

January 2, 
2018 
 
OUT OF 
AREA 
MEETING: 
TBD 

 Retreat 

 Action Plan for Health Update 
 

-Oregon Health 
Insurance 
Survey Fact 
Sheets 
-CCO Metrics 
Report 

Health Care Workforce 
Assessment due to Leg. 
Assembly.  
 
Behavioral Health 
Collaborative progress 
report due to JCW&M 

Feb 6, 2018  Primary Care Collaborative Update & 
Report 

 DHS Integrated Enrollment & Eligibility 
Update 

 Ensuring Access to Care Discussion 
 
 

 -Primary Care 
Spending 
Report 

 
 
Legislature in Session 
 

Mar 6, 2018  HITOC update 

 Social Determinants of Health Discussion 

   



4 
 

Month 
Agenda Items (Chair’s welcome, Director’s 
report, public testimony and breaks are 
standing items) 

Board Priority Area Reports 
 

Legislative Mandates 

April 10, 
2018 

 Workforce Committee Report on Health 
Care Provider Incentive Program 

 Health Plan Quality Metrics Update 

 Paying for Outcomes and Values 
Discussion  

 -PHAB Annual 
Report 

Primary Care Payment 
Reform Collaborative 
Report to OHPB re: 
achievement of the 
primary care spending 
targets and 
implementation of 
initiative, due annually, no 
date in statute  

May 1, 2018  PHAB Update & Presentation: baseline 
accountability metrics 

 Opioid Update 

 Shifting the Focus Upstream Discussion 

   

June 5, 2018  Health Equity Committee Update    
July TBD, 
2018 

 Action Plan for Health update 

 Measure Progress Discussion 

 -CCO Metrics 
Report 
-Hospital 
Transformation 
Performance 
Program 
Report 
-CCO Quarterly 
Legislative 
Report  

PHAB recommendations 
to OHPB re: Accountability 
Metrics. Due date is not in 
statute.  

August 7, 
2018 

 Workforce Composition Promising 
Strategies & Presentation on Evaluation 
of Health Provider Incentives  

 Improving Health Equity Discussion 

 Hospital Fiscal Report 

 -Hospital 
Financial 
Report 
 

Workforce Financial 
Incentives Effectiveness 
Report, due to interim 
health committees of the 
Leg. Assembly every 2 
years, first due Sep. 2018. 
 



5 
 

Month 
Agenda Items (Chair’s welcome, Director’s 
report, public testimony and breaks are 
standing items) 

Board Priority Area Reports 
 

Legislative Mandates 

OHA report to OHPB re: 
Status of Doulas in Oregon 
Sep. 2018 

September 4, 
2018 
 
OUT OF 
AREA 
MEETING: 
TBD 

 Local stakeholder presentations and 
updates 

 Engaging Stakeholders & Partners 
Discussion 

 -WF 
composition 
report 

 

October 2, 
2018 

 Workforce Provider Incentive Program 
Update 

 -Oregon Health 
Insurance 
Survey Fact 
Sheets 

 

November 6, 
2018 

 Behavioral Health Collaborative Report   -CCO Quarterly 
Legislative 
Report 

 

December 4, 
2018 

 FLEX  -Hospital 
Community 
Benefit Report 
 

 
 

Behavioral Health 
Collaborative final report 
due to JCW&M 

 



 

 
 
 
August 28, 2017 
 
 
Mr. David Simnitt, Interim Medicaid Director, Oregon Health Authority 
Ms. Leslie Clement, Director, Health Policy and Analytics, Oregon Health Authority 
Ms. Ashley Carson Cottingham, Aging and People with Disabilities Director, Department of Human Services 
Ms. Lilia Teninty, Office of Developmental Disability Services Director, Department of Human Services 
Via email 
 
Dear Mr. Simnitt, Ms. Clement, Ms. Carson Cottingham, and Ms. Teninty: 
 
Members of the Oregon Medicaid Advisory Committee (MAC) appreciate our role in advising the state on 
Medicaid policy and planning through a consumer and community lens. We are proud of Oregon’s Medicaid 
program as a national model for integrated and coordinated health care that produces better health, better care 
and lower costs.  
 
We strive to make recommendations that are in line with this vision to continue improving the lives of 
Oregonians and their families. It is with this purpose in mind that we submit to you a set of Guiding Principles for 
Oregon Medicaid, developed by the MAC in response to months of federal debate and uncertainty with regard 
to Medicaid financing and structure. 
  
During the past several months, as the American Health Care Act (AHCA) and the Better Care and Reconciliation 
Act (BCRA) moved through Congress, the MAC received a series of updates on federal health care policy 
proposals and Oregon’s response. To assist State policymakers as they consider possible federal changes to 
Medicaid, MAC members identified core, foundational elements of Oregon Medicaid that should be protected 
even in the face of possible cuts or increased flexibilities. While health care proposals related to the Affordable 
Care Act have quieted, we are aware that Congress continues to consider health reforms and that Medicaid-
specific conversations could resurface in the coming months. We hope these principles are valuable to you, our 
State Medicaid leaders, and invite you to continue to engage the MAC in future policy development work on this 
topic however we may be useful. 
  
Thank you for your work to improve the health and lives of Oregon Medicaid members and their families.  
 
Sincerely,      

     
 
Jeremiah B. Rigsby, JD     Laura Etherton     
Co-Chair, Medicaid Advisory Committee  Co-Chair, Medicaid Advisory Committee 
 
 
 

 

 
Division of Health Policy and Analytics 
       

 

 Kate Brown, Governor 

500 Summer Street, NE 
Salem, OR 97301 

      
      
      

 



Medicaid Advisory Committee Members  
Laura Etherton – Co-Chair, Policy Director, Oregon Primary Care Association 
Jeremiah Rigsby – Co-Chair, Director, Public Policy & Regulatory Affairs, CareOregon 
Tamara Bakewell - Project Coordinator for Oregon Center for Children and Youth with Special Health Needs 
(OCCYSHN) 
Glendora Claybrooks, NCMA, MHA, GCPM – OHP member; CAC Member, Health Share 
Regena Dehen, ND, MAcOM - Chief Medical Officer and Dean of Clinics for the National University of Natural 
Medicine 
Robert Diprete – former MAC Director, retired Deputy Administrator, OHPR  
Alyssa Franzen, DMD – dental provider; Dental Director, Care Oregon 
Miguel Angel Herrada – Health Equity and Diversity Strategist for Pacific Source, Central Oregon region 
Anna Lansky, MPA – Assistant Director, Division of Developmental Disability Services, DHS, Ex-Officio Member 
Marcia Hille – Executive Director, Sequoia Mental Health Services 
Maria Rodriguez, MD, MPH – OB/GYN OHSU 
Ross Ryan – OHP member, consumer advocate 
David Simnitt – Interim Medicaid Director, OHA, Ex-Officio Member 
 
 



  

GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR OREGON MEDICAID 

A set of principles developed by Oregon’s Medicaid Advisory Committee 
to guide the State in the event of federal changes to Medicaid program 

financing or structure 



 
2 

OREGON MEDICAID ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

AUGUST 2017 

GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR OREGON MEDICAID 

 

The Oregon Medicaid Advisory Committee (MAC) is a public advisory group established 
in accordance with 42 CFR § 431.12 and ORS 414.211 to advise the Oregon Health Authority 
and Department of Human Services regarding Oregon Medicaid policy and planning using a 
consumer and community lens. The MAC developed a set of six guiding principles to assist the 
state as it considers possible federal changes to Medicaid financing and structure and increased 
programmatic flexibility. These principles are meant to begin a conversation; the MAC invites 
Oregon policymakers to engage with the Committee in future policy development work in the 
specifics of Medicaid reform. 

The MAC would like to emphasize that the following principles were created in the 
context of possible financing and structural changes to Medicaid that would result in a cost 
shift from federal to state funding sources. As such, these principles are not meant to present 
an ideal or improvement framework for Oregon’s Medicaid program. Instead, the MAC 
principles are meant to identify core, foundational elements of Oregon Medicaid that should be 
protected even in the face of possible cuts or increased flexibilities for state programs. 

While the following principles are specific to the Medicaid program, the MAC recognizes 
Medicaid as integrally linked to the broader health care system. Indeed, Medicaid members 
frequently move between Medicaid and other types of coverage, including qualified health 
plans and employer-based coverage, and into Medicare as they age. Other bodies have 
developed principles for the health care system more broadly, including the Oregon Health 
Policy Board’s guiding principles for its Action Plan for Health, and Oregon’s priorities for 
federal reform.1 The MAC endorses these broader principles and has sought alignment in 
developing its own principles for Medicaid. 

In particular, the following principles reinforce Oregon’s second priority for federal 
reform: 

Oregon’s health system transformation should continue to be a model for achieving cost-savings 
through changing health care delivery, not rolling back eligibility, benefits or funding levels. 2

                                                                 
1 See American Health Care Act: Impact on Oregonians. March 16, 2017. Oregon Department of Consumer and 
Business Services and Oregon Health Authority. Available at: 
http://www.95percentoregon.com/uploads/9/9/2/6/99265876/ahca-report.pdf  
2 Ibid 

http://www.95percentoregon.com/uploads/9/9/2/6/99265876/ahca-report.pdf


 

Six Guiding Principles for Oregon Medicaid: A set of principles to guide the State in the event of federal 
changes to Medicaid program financing or structure 

 

3 
OREGON MEDICAID ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

AUGUST 2017 

 

SIX GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR OREGON MEDICAID 

 

1. MAINTAIN MEDICAID’S CAPACITY AS A CRITICAL SUPPORT PROGRAM 
FOR DIVERSE SUBPOPULATIONS OF LOW-INCOME AND 
CATEGORICALLY ELIGIBLE OREGONIANS 

Oregon should maintain Medicaid’s capacity as a critical support program for diverse 
subpopulations of low-income and categorically eligible Oregonians, including but not limited to 
parents, women, children, seniors, persons with disabilities, communities experiencing health 
inequities,i and residents in rural and frontier areas. Furthermore, Oregon should strive to 
maintain the significant coverage gains the state has achieved since the implementation of the 
Affordable Care Act, and changes to the Medicaid program should be designed to prevent the 
number of uninsured individuals from increasing.  

The State should do everything possible to maintain eligibility and essential benefits for 
populations currently receiving Medicaid. However, Oregon should also be wary of increasing 
cost-sharing, as research has shown that prior increases to OHP cost-sharing negatively 
impacted access, coverage and health.ii Ultimately, any changes to Medicaid should not shift 
the financial burden to members in ways that reduce access to care or increase costs 
downstream in the health care system.  The MAC supports the growing consensus that health 
care is a human right. 

2. CONTINUE IMPROVING AND STREAMLINING ENROLLMENT 
PROCESSES AND AVOID BARRIERS TO ENROLLMENT 

Oregon should continue to improve administration of outreach, initial eligibility 
determination, enrollment, and redetermination of eligibility, and avoid creating barriers to 
enrollment, especially for those experiencing health inequities. Programmatic changes to 
Medicaid should be designed with attention to health equity and ensuring adequate, culturally 
responsive outreach to all populations eligible for Medicaid. The State should continue to invest 
in technology that will improve administration and support care coordination. 



 

Six Guiding Principles for Oregon Medicaid: A set of principles to guide the State in the event of federal 
changes to Medicaid program financing or structure 

 

4 
OREGON MEDICAID ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

AUGUST 2017 

3. CONTINUE TO PRIORITIZE A PATIENT-CENTERED CARE MODEL WITH A 
FOCUS ON ALL ASPECTS OF HEALTH AND HEALTH DETERMINANTS 
AND PRIMARY CARE AT ITS CORE 

Oregon should continue to prioritize an integrated, patient-centered care model that 
focuses on primary care and delivering the right care at the right time in the right place. The 
State should leverage and support the capacity of public health agencies, patient-centered 
primary care homes, and rural health, tribal health and community health centers and other 
front-line workers in this model. Changes to payment or procedures should not compromise 
Oregon’s most dedicated Medicaid providers or undermine ongoing efforts to build a culturally 
competent workforce that reflects local community characteristics and needs. Moreover, 
Oregon should continue to invest in health care education partnerships and incentive programs 
to address the root causes of workforce shortages. It is essential to maintain a provider network 
adequate to ensure access to covered services for all members, including linguistically diverse 
populations and people with disabilities. Wherever possible, the State should minimize 
administrative burdens on providers and avoid unnecessary barriers to Medicaid participation. 

4. MAINTAIN OREGON’S COMMITMENT TO INTEGRATED HEALTH 
SERVICES 

Oregon should maintain its commitment to an integrated health system that coordinates 
physical, behavioral and oral health care services along with a robust and coordinated long 
term care system. As it considers changes to benefits, services, or financing, Oregon should 
ensure that changes don’t undermine efforts to improve health or address health equity. 

5. ENGAGE CONSUMERS, PROVIDERS, AND PLANS IN SOLUTIONS 

Oregon should meaningfully engage consumers, providers, and health plan administrators 
in developing solutions to improve efficiency and manage costs, while maintaining quality. 
Members should be engaged from both the managed care and fee-for-service delivery systems. 
Oregon should make particular efforts to engage members and their families most affected by 
health inequities. i Targeted investment of resources and continued efforts to engage diverse 
populations, community-based organizations, and leaders in the private sector will be needed 
to achieve sustainable solutions.iii  

6. CONTINUE TO SHIFT THE FOCUS UPSTREAM 

Oregon should emphasize prevention and promote healthy development and healthy 
behaviors where people live, work, and play. The State should also continue its leadership in 



 

Six Guiding Principles for Oregon Medicaid: A set of principles to guide the State in the event of federal 
changes to Medicaid program financing or structure 

 

5 
OREGON MEDICAID ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

AUGUST 2017 

addressing the social determinants of health through providing health-related services and 
prioritizing long term care services in home and community-based settings to support full 
integration of individuals into their communities. Improving health equity and addressing root 
causes of health issues can drive savings not only for Oregon’s Medicaid program but for the 
State overall.  

i Communities experiencing health inequities include, but are not limited to, culturally and linguistically diverse 
populations, immigrants and refugees, migrant and seasonal farmworkers, homeless populations, LGBTQ 
individuals, and people with disabilities. 
ii See e.g. Wright BJ, Carlson MJ, Allen H, Holmgren AL & Rustvold DL. (2010). Raising premiums and other costs for 
Oregon Health Plan enrollees drove many to drop out. Health Affairs, 29(12):2311-2316  
iii Communities most affected by decisions should be engaged to give input on state decisions regarding eligibility 
and benefits. For example, members of the I/DD community (including people living with intellectual and/or 
developmental disabilities, their families, providers, advocates, and other stakeholders) recently prioritized 
maintaining maximum eligibility over maintaining maximum benefits, should the state be forced to consider 
program cuts in the future. (L. Sutton & R. Ryan, personal communication, July 24, 2017). 

                                                                 



OHA COMMITTEES 

OHPB Committees – 2017 
 

Blue = Current OHPB Committees               Orange = Newly Proposed               

Green = Non-OHPB committees at OHA with opportunities for alignment and coordination 

 

 

 

OHPB Committees Statutory? Duration OHA Staffing Support OHPB Liaison 

Healthcare Workforce 
Committee (HCWF) 

X 
Standing committee HPA – Health Policy Carla McKelvey 

Public Health Advisory Board 
(PHAB) 

X 
Standing committee Public Health David 

Bangsberg 

Health Information Technology 
Oversight Council (HITOC) 

X 
Standing committee HPA - OHIT Karen Joplin 

Health Plan Quality Metrics X 
Standing committee HPA – Analytics & 

PEBB 
John Santa 

Health Equity Committee  Standing committee  OEI Oscar Arana 

OHA Committees Aligned w/ OHPB Priorities: Duration OHA Leadership OHPB Consult 

Behavioral Health 
Collaborative 

 
Ongoing 
 

HPA – Behavioral 
Health Policy team 

Brenda Johnson 

Medicaid Advisory Committee* X 
Ongoing, Federally 
req’d 

HPA –Health Policy  

Primary Care Collaborative  
Ongoing HPA-Transformation 

Center 
Carla McKelvey 

Pharmacy Cost Collaborative  Ongoing HPA-Pharmacy 
Director 

TBD 

 

* Medicaid Advisory Committee is federally required for every state. It is responsible for developing and advising 

Medicaid policy recommendations at the request of the Governor, the Legislature and OHA. 

OHPB

Quality
Metrics

Committee

HCWF

PHABHITOC

Health 
Equity 

Committee

Medicaid 

Advisory 

Committee 

Primary Care 

Collaborative 

Behavioral 

Health 

Collaborative 

Pharmacy 

Collaborative 

Work Groups 



Role of Liaison to OHPB Committees: Oversight & Direction 

 Attend (in-person or via phone) subcommittee meetings (most are bimonthly or quarterly); 

ensure strong connection to OHPB through regular updates to committee, participation in 

crafting charter,  and ensuring committee is carrying out OHPB deliverables as envisioned 

 Prior to subcommittee meetings, review agenda with OHA staff via email or phone 

 Provide updates to OHPB as needed regarding committee activities, membership, charter 

development, etc. 

Role of OHPB members providing consultation to OHA Committees: Monitoring & Guidance 

 Attend meetings as needed; ensure appropriate connection to OHPB by providing OHPB insight 

to the committee and providing OHPB members with updates on committee activities as 

needed. 

 Provide guidance to relevant OHA staff (leadership and those staffing committee) related to the 

alignment of OHA committee work with OHPB priorities 

 

 

Role of OHPB  OHPB Committees OHA Committees 

Establish Membership 
Members chosen by OHPB and Gov’s 
office 

Membership chosen by OHA Leadership 

Establish Work plan / 
Charter 

OHPB formally adopts committee charter 
creating work plan and deliverables 

Work plan and/or charters established by 
individual committees in conjunction with OHA 
Leadership and others based on state priorities 

Role of OHPB Liaison / 
Monitor 

Provides direction to help committee 
meet charter deliverables; leadership 
along with chair / vice 

Enhance connection and alignment between 
OHPB priorities and & ongoing OHA work; 
provide guidance for OHA staff and leadership  

 



Health Policy & Analytics

Office of Clinical Services Improvement

Pharmacy Collaborative Workgroups

September 12, 2017



Introduction

• Pharmacy Purchasing and Oregon Prescription Drug Program 

(OPDP) Director reports to the Chief Medical Officer who leads the 

Clinical Services Improvement section in the Health Policy and 

Analytics Division for OHA.

• The Pharmacy Purchasing and OPDP Director is responsible for 

several contracts including the NW Rx Drug Consortium Master 

Administrator contract and the Drug Use Research and 

Management contract.

Health Policy & Analytics

Office of Clinical Services Improvement

2



Why are we here?

Health Policy & Analytics

Office of Clinical Services Improvement

3



The why continued….

Health Policy & Analytics

Office of Clinical Services Improvement

4



Clinical versus Fiscal

• There are always clinical implications to the Pharmacy work and 

these are hard to leave unaddressed particularly when it comes to 

opioids, and expensive treatments for diseases like Hepatitis C.

• The focus this presentation isn’t the clinical side of the equation but 

rather the fiscal side of the pharmacy equation.

Health Policy & Analytics

Office of Clinical Services Improvement

5



Deliverables/Objectives

1. Provide feedback and recommendations on strategies that can bring 

improved pricing transparency and oversight for drug pricing and expected 

outcomes.

2. Provide feedback and recommendations on alignment and standardization 

of preferred drug list across CCOs and Medicaid FFS.

3. Provide feedback and recommendations on state’s ability to operate as 

pharmacy benefits manager and/or expand role of Oregon Prescription 

Drug Program to broaden purchasing and negotiating power.

4. Contribute to provider and patient education regarding misleading 

prescription drug marketing.

5. Provide feedback and recommendations on strategies that address the 

purchasing and distribution of broadly indicated drugs that protect public 

health (e.g. Vaccines). 

Health Policy & Analytics

Office of Clinical Services Improvement

6



Health Policy & Analytics

Office of Clinical Services Improvement

7

Pharmacy Collaborative Workgroups

• State Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee - created by 2011 

SB2100. Works to fulfill statutory requirements and federal 

requirements for Medicaid FFS Preferred Drug List, Drug Utilization 

Review and prior authorization criteria.

• CCO Pharmacy Directors Group - Works to align understanding for 

CCO implementation and share experiences & best practices around 

the OHP pharmacy benefit.

• Pharmacy Cost Collaborative - Works on identifying possible 

strategies for CCO’s and other state agency stakeholders to reduce 

costs in the pharmacy space.

• Health Evidence Review Commission - With respect to the pharmacy 

space, HERC provides help with marginally effective/non-effective 

treatments in concert with P&T committee.



How Activity Is Communicated To OHPB

• With several groups tackling the issues it makes sense to 

consolidate things into a format that makes it easy for OHPB to see 

progress and feedback from these collaborative groups.

– Objectives/Deliverables of the Collaborative  will be basis of report to 

OHPB.

• A brief summary will be shared with the presentation of progress 

made and current activities at scheduled OHPB meetings.

• Publically available materials relevant to the Pharmacy workgroups 

making up the collaborative will be made available upon request by 

OHPB.

Health Policy & Analytics

Office of Clinical Services Improvement

8



Improved Pricing Transparency & 

Outcomes

• Medicaid FFS and the Sovereign States Drug Consortium (SSDC) –

leveraging supplemental rebates for FFS population and MH drugs.

• Expanding OPDP use through presentations to CCOs and offering 

reprice projections.

• State Medicaid Alternative Reimbursement Purchasing Test – for 

high cost Drugs (SMART-D) Program – Driving forward into the 

Alternative Payment Model array within the pharmacy space. Kick-

off meeting held August 8th.

• Tracking outcomes and high cost drugs to demonstrate value and 

further opportunities to forge outcome based payment 

methodologies and strategies.

Health Policy & Analytics

Office of Clinical Services Improvement

9



Alignment and Standardization of a PDL

• Oregon’s CCO Pharmacy Directors Group and Pharmacy Cost 

Collaborative and begun to drive discussions around a single PDL or 

“aligned” PDL. 

– beginning to discuss and looking for a consensus based 

recommendation around a single PDL or aligned PDL

• Initial analysis and discussion points to:

– improved continuity between CCO’s and FFS.

– standardized prior authorization criteria for providers.

– possible leverage in pricing with CCO and FFS alignment.

– CCO’s may have different experiences from a utilization perspective.

Health Policy & Analytics

Office of Clinical Services Improvement

10



Growing the OPDP

• As mentioned previously the CCO market is currently engaged in 

exploring the OPDP option.

• An OHA analysis has suggested that there could be significant 

savings to CCO’s who chose to participate with OPDP. ( an average 

of 4.2% savings across CCOs was noted with a range of 1.2% to 

9.9% considering individual CCO utilization).

• Because OPDP is part of the NW Prescription Drug Consortium 

growing the number of lives covered under OPDP helps both 

Washington State and Oregon leverage their Medicaid lives to 

deliver very competitive rates and pricing guarantees.

• Recent developments in the specialty drug market have triggered a 

cost plus payment methodology that is set to be delivered by OPDP 

Administrator in 2018.

Health Policy & Analytics

Office of Clinical Services Improvement

11



Evidence-based

• Prioritized List and marginally effective treatments and/or non-

effective treatments informs providers of funding availability based 

on evidence.

• Prior authorization criteria development provides framework for 

coverage that guides appropriate use.

• Newsletter generated by contractor (OSU College of Pharmacy) 

provides details about key focus areas bi monthly published for 

public use.

Health Policy & Analytics

Office of Clinical Services Improvement

12



Public Health Pharmacy Purchasing

• There is a desire to explore coordinating with other purchasers such 

as, Department of Corrections, Oregon Youth Authority and Public 

Health Division in developing strategies to align and leverage 

purchasing power.

• There is a desire to explore opportunities to leverage CCO 

relationships to help Oregon manage public health crisis response, 

and distribution of medications/vaccines to protect the public’s 

health.

Health Policy & Analytics

Office of Clinical Services Improvement

13



Thank You!

Trevor Douglass, DC, MPH

Pharmacy Purchasing and Oregon Prescription Drug Program Director

Health Policy & Analytics

Office of Clinical Services Improvement

trevor.douglass@state.or.us

971-209-8491

Health Policy & Analytics

Office of Clinical Services Improvement

14

mailto:Trevor.douglass@state.or.us


Acronyms and definitions

• ACA – Affordable Care Act

• SMART-D – State Medicaid Alternative Reimbursement/Purchasing Test – for high cost Drugs; 

this is a multi-state project that is led by Center for Evidence-based Policy at OHSU to move 

towards value/outcome based strategies within the pharmacy realm.

• PDL – Preferred Drug List; payers can often achieve advantageous pricing when specific products 

are placed on a preferred list.

• OPDP – Oregon Prescription Drug Program; works with state agencies and other eligible entities 

to leverage purchasing power. It is part of the NW Prescription Drug Consortium with Washington 

State.

• DOC – Department of Corrections

• OYA – Oregon Youth Authority

• FFS – Fee-For- Service; this is used to describe Medicaid population not served by a CCO.

• SSDC – Sovereign States Drug Consortium; this is a multi-state Medicaid pharmacy program 

consortium that leverages there Medicaid lives to obtain supplemental rebate from manufacturers. 

(12 states currently)

Health Policy & Analytics

Office of Clinical Services Improvement

15



Proposed Health Equity Committee Membership 
September 5, 2017 

 

Name Title Organizational Affiliation Location by County 

JoAnn Miller 
 

Community Health 
Promotion 
Director 

Did not include Linn-Benton 

Description/Background: JoAnn is a graduate of OHA’s nine month training on health equity leadership: Developing 
Equity Leadership Through Training and Action (DELTA). JoAnn has experience delivering training on cultural 
competency and health inequities.  She is a member of the Linn-Benton Health Equity Alliance, a Regional Health Equity 
Coalition, and the IHN/CCO Transformation Team Health Disparities Workgroup. JoAnn also has strong ties to health 
care providers of color in Linn, Benton and Lincoln Counties, and she lives and works in rural Oregon.  

Samuel Garcia Financial Aid 
Counselor/Literacy 
Coordinator 

Eastern Oregon University  
Union 

Description/Background: Samuel is well versed in community needs, having worked with Oregon Health Plan members 
via the Oregon Health Authority call center and as a financial aid counselor in Eastern Oregon. Samuel also facilitates 
community groups to guide people to the resources that are available to them. His interest is to expand the reach of 
health policy in Oregon to encompass the needs of Central and Eastern Oregon.  

Joseph Santos-Lyons Executive  
Director 

Asian Pacific American Network of Oregon 
(APANO) 

Multnomah  
 

Description/Background: Joseph served on the previous Health Equity Policy Committee and was instrumental in seeing 
through the development of the new charter for the OHPB Health Equity Committee.  He brings historical continuity 
regarding the past committee and the transition.  Joseph was also the co-founder of the Oregon Health Equity Alliance 
(OHEA), a Regional Health Equity Coalition.  He served as co-chair of the steering committee for four years. His expertise 
is in community organizing and policy development and advocacy around the social determinants of health, as well as 
coalition and capacity building. 

Carlos Soriano 
 

Community 
Partnership 
Coordinator 

Department of Human Services Malheur 

Description/Background: Carlos has worked in community outreach in Ontario, Oregon for the last five years, in a 
county with some of the highest poverty rates in Oregon.  Lack of equitable care is an issue that Carlos sees and works 
to address on a daily basis. In addition to Malheur County, he has strong ties to Grant and Harney Counties and serves 
on the Community Advisory Council for the Eastern Oregon Coordinated Care Organization. 



Carolina Castañeda 
del Rio 
 

Program 
Coordinator 

La Clinica 
 

Jackson 
 

Description/Background: Carolina has worked in direct service for 10 years supporting people in poverty, people with 
disabilities and people with behavioral health and other chronic conditions.  Carolina is a mental health counselor and a 
member of the Southern Oregon Health Equity Coalition serving on the cultural agility committee and as chair of the 
steering committee. Housing, the recruitment and retention of a diverse healthcare workforce and decreasing the gap 
in teen pregnancy and prenatal care for Latinas are Carolina’s primary areas of concern and focus.  

Kim Irish Quality Manager, 
Graduate Medical 
Education  
 

Hospital System Multnomah 
 

Description/Background: Kim works for the School of Medicine at OHSU with particular interest in health literacy, 
language access, communication and patient-centered outcomes. One area of focused work is incorporating health 
equity into faculty and learner development.  Kim is currently a doctoral student in the OHSU-PSU School of Public 
Health’s Health Systems and Policy program.  

West Livaudais 
 

Program 
Coordinator  

Hospital System 
 

Multnomah 
 

Description/Background: West founded the Oregon Spinal Cord Injury Connection non-profit, working to build 
community and access to resources for people impacted by spinal cord injury. West is a MPH graduate student in the 
OHSU-PSU School of Public Health. He is also focused on policy related to Race, Ethnicity, Language and Disability data 
and Community Health Workers in the disability community, as well as health equity from a social justice perspective. 
 

Michael Anderson-
Nathe 
 

Chief Equity and 
Engagement 
Officer 

Health Share of Oregon 
 

Multnomah 
 

Description/Background: Michael has dedicated his professional career to social justice and equity including 17 years in 
HIV prevention and more recently in health system transformation. Michael is a graduate of the Developing Equity 
Leadership through Training and Action (DELTA) and has expertise in organizational development and intercultural 
communication via a Master’s in Public Administration.  Michael is interested in working collaboratively in shaping 
health equity policy and implementation across the state and CCO model.  

Caitlin Hostetter Program 
Implementations/ 
Social Work 

Project Access Now 
 

Multnomah 
 



 

Description/Background: Caitlin has experience in health equity and the social determinants of health from both a 
scholarly perspective and in practical application. Caitlin has worked for Morrison Child and Family Services, in the 
behavioral health arena and with focus on youth, communities of color and LGBTQ communities. At Project Access Now, 
Caitlin’s work focuses on the social determinants of health.  

Ana Gutierrez Lemus Registered Nurse 
 

Did not include 
 

Washington 
 

Description/Background: Ana is a primary and critical care nurse with experience in addressing health disparities 
through organizations such as the Susan G Komen Foundation and Familias en Accion.  Ana’s experience has motivated 
her to look at a holistic approach to care including the social determinants, environment, occupation and overall safety 
and well-being. She is versed in the complexities of the care system and is interested in how health policy can directly 
impact care and health outcomes. 

Carly Hood Social 
Determinants of 
Health Manager 

Oregon Primary Care Association Multnomah 
 

Description/Background: Carly has masters’ degrees in Public Health and Public Administration with focus on policy 
development, evaluation and the way that social service, race and place impact health.  Carly has published work on 
what physicians can do to impact the social determinants of health to become health equity advocates.  Her focus is on 
strengthening the link between social policy, systems change and health outcomes.  

Derick Du Vivier 
 

Physician 
 

Hospital System 
 

Multnomah 
 

Description/Background:  Derek has been a practicing physician in Oregon for 15 years.  He has worked with diverse 
patient populations including migrant workers, inner-city African Americans and immigrants from Africa, Eastern Europe 
and Central America. He combines his medical and policy related experience to provide more inclusive care and 
mitigate the damage of chronic diseases related to health inequities. He recently developed and implemented a 
curriculum to promote diversity and inclusion in his department and has studied health care policy in Japan.  

Amory Zshach Administrative 
Staff Member 
 

Affiliated Tribes of NW Indians 
 

Multnomah 
 

Description/Background: Amory has experience in reproductive health rights, including successful work on and passage 
of HB 3391 (Reproductive Health Equity Act). Amory has also worked in the non-profit and culturally specific 
organization realm, including coordination of client care of people from tribal communities. Amory is in the 2016-2017 
Native American Youth and Family Services (NAYA) Leadership Program).  



Muna Abu 
 

Community Health 
Worker 
 

Immigrant and Refugee Community 
Organization (IRCO) 
 

Multnomah 
 

Description/Background: Muna has experience working with immigrant and refugee communities relating to culturally 
specific care.  She works not only as a Community Health Worker, but also as a Youth and Family Advocate.  She is 
versed in the importance of culture and cultural norms related to care, especially when addressing health disparities 
and inequities. 

John Robert Rolling 
Thunder 
 

Did not include 
 

Did not include 
 

Lane 
 

Description/Background: John has worked in health equity over the course of four decades in areas including 
homelessness, juvenile mentoring programs and pioneering work related to the AIDS/HIV crisis. John is also a member 
of the Trillium Community Advisory Council and works on Race, Ethnicity, Language and Disability data efforts. Currently 
John is developing a group therapy program for people living with AIDS/HIV in partnership with the Center for Family 
Development and the HIV Alliance. 
 

 

Demographic Information 

15 Total 

Gender: 7 female; 7 male; 1 non-binary 
 
Race: Black/African American (2); Asian/Pacific Islander (1); Native American (1); Two or more races (4)*; Latina/Hispanic (3); Did not identify 
(4) 
 
Ethnicity: Hispanic (4); Non-Hispanic (7); Did not identify (4) 
 
Geography: Multnomah County (9); Washington County (1); Lane (1);  Linn (1); Jackson (1); Union (1); Malheur (1) 
 
Disability: Disability (2) 
 
*Two or more races identified as: Latino/Afro-Dominican (1); Chinese/White (1); Black/White (1); Cheyanne & Arapaho/German (1) 



 
 
 

 



 
 

 

 

 
 
HEALTH POLICY AND ANALYTICS DIVISION  

Health Information Technology Oversight Council 

 

  

500 Summer St NE E52 
Salem, OR, 97301 

Voice: 503-373-7859 
FAX: 503-378-6705 

TTY: 711 
HealthIT.Oregon.gov 

 
 

To:   Oregon Health Policy Board 

From:   Health Information Technology Oversight Council 

Date:   September 5th, 2017 

Re:   HITOC’s Report to OHPB 

 

HITOC is charged with regularly reporting to OHPB on the status of the Oregon Health IT Program, 

efforts of local, regional and statewide organizations to participate in health IT systems, and the 

adoption and use of health IT in Oregon. In addition to presenting this report to OHPB in September, 

HITOC requests the following actions from OHPB: 

1) Approval of HITOC’s 2018-2020 work plan 

2) Endorsement of the HITOC HIT Strategic Plan, including the key components of the HIT 

Commons public/private partnership model and the Network of Networks approach to statewide 

HIE 

HITOC workplan 2015-17 and key highlights: HITOC has been engaged in several bodies of work to 

advance the adoption and spread of health IT across the state. Key highlights include: 

 Updating the HITOC HIT Strategic Plan, including the development of recommendations for a 

public-private partnership, the HITOC Commons and a Network of Networks approach to 

statewide health information exchange 

 Monitoring the spread of health information exchange efforts, such as the Emergency 

Department Information Exchange (EDIE), PreManage, and regional HIE efforts 

 Overseeing the development and implementation of the Oregon HIT Program 

 Surveying behavioral health organizations on their use of HIT  

 Identifying opportunities to highlight successes and best practices among healthcare 

organizations 

Below is the 2015- 2017 HITOC Work Plan approved by OHPB in 2015. We will present highlights of 

the work and accomplishments during the presentation in September.  

Policy Topics 

 Improving Interoperability across HIT/HIE investments in Oregon 

 Behavioral Health information sharing 

 Update Oregon HIT Strategic Plan 

Oregon HIT 

Program 

 Programs and Services  

 Partnerships/Collaboratives  

 Initiatives and Pilots 

Health IT 

Environment 

 Board Reporting Format Finalized 

 HIT Metrics and Dashboard Development 

 Monitoring EHR Incentive Program 

 Monitoring HIE efforts (e.g. HIT/HIE Community & Organizational Panel) 

 Behavioral Health Provider Survey (anticipated) 

Federal Law and 

Policy 

 Meaningful Use Stage 3 and other relevant federal rules and policies 

 ONC Interoperability Roadmap 

 ONC Standards Advisory 

 



 

 

If time allows, we will also present briefly on the recently completed EDIE Utility Evaluation, which 

highlights the success of this effort and identifies opportunities for future improvement.1  

 

HITOC workplan 2018- 2020 and key highlights: We will also present on HITOC’s recommendation 

for its 2018-2020 work plan, as described below.  In particular, HITOC is recommending it focus on the 

following:  

 Policy topics: 

o Behavioral health information sharing 

o Patient access, consent and specially protected information 

o Social determinants of health 

 Strategic planning: 

o Strategic planning updates 

o Supporting statewide health information exchange through a “Network of networks” 

model 

o Supporting HIT needed for alternative payment models 

o Supporting the development of a new HIT Commons public/private partnership 

 Oversight, HIT Environment, and reporting: 

o Advancing data-driven measurement and milestones for HIT oversight, including 

ongoing environmental scanning and dashboards to measure statewide progress 

 

                                            
1 The full EDIE Utility Evaluation can be found here: http://www.orhealthleadershipcouncil.org/wp-
content/uploads/2017/09/EDIE-Evaluation-Report-Final-8-21-17-v.1.pdf 

http://www.orhealthleadershipcouncil.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/EDIE-Evaluation-Report-Final-8-21-17-v.1.pdf
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.orhealthleadershipcouncil.org_wp-2Dcontent_uploads_2017_09_EDIE-2DEvaluation-2DReport-2DFinal-2D8-2D21-2D17-2Dv.1.pdf&d=DwMF-g&c=7gilq_oJKU2hnacFUWFTuYqjMQ111TRstgx6WoATdXo&r=rmN0-qr5Eln-g1gUaHyVYuRu49HisUkVsryj3p8wWms&m=hcqvI85fp2LS9YV-fkdQwttaUS_e60-WTd7h1WwAGqk&s=fQr7Cidww8zs9jiGjG-O7fYdP7yoNqB3Wyc-TSGh3_A&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.orhealthleadershipcouncil.org_wp-2Dcontent_uploads_2017_09_EDIE-2DEvaluation-2DReport-2DFinal-2D8-2D21-2D17-2Dv.1.pdf&d=DwMF-g&c=7gilq_oJKU2hnacFUWFTuYqjMQ111TRstgx6WoATdXo&r=rmN0-qr5Eln-g1gUaHyVYuRu49HisUkVsryj3p8wWms&m=hcqvI85fp2LS9YV-fkdQwttaUS_e60-WTd7h1WwAGqk&s=fQr7Cidww8zs9jiGjG-O7fYdP7yoNqB3Wyc-TSGh3_A&e=


 

 

 

HIT Strategic Plan 2017-2020 

 

HITOC seeks OHPB endorsement of the updated HIT Strategic Plan, including the key components of 

the HIT Commons public/private partnership model and the Network of Networks approach to statewide 

HIE. 

 The HIT Commons is a public-private partnership, modeling on the success of the EDIE Utility, 

that will bring together stakeholders to advance HIT efforts by leveraging shared and federal 

funding opportunities and accelerating the adoption of statewide initiatives.2 

 The Network of Networks will leverage existing investments in enabling infrastructure and 

technology to link Oregon’s growing regional and organization-based health information 

exchange efforts through shared agreements, standardized implementations, and collaborative 

learning around efforts and best practices.  

 

We look forward to OHPB’s direction and comment at the September meeting. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Susan Otter 

OHA Director of HIT 

 

Erick Doolen 

HITOC Chair 

 

Amy Henninger, MD 

HITOC Vice-Chair 

 
 

                                            
2 The full HIT Commons Business Plan can be found here: 

http://www.orhealthleadershipcouncil.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/HIT-Commons-Business-
Plan-FINAL-9-2-17.pdf 

http://www.orhealthleadershipcouncil.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/HIT-Commons-Business-Plan-FINAL-9-2-17.pdf
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.orhealthleadershipcouncil.org_wp-2Dcontent_uploads_2017_09_HIT-2DCommons-2DBusiness-2DPlan-2DFINAL-2D9-2D2-2D17.pdf&d=DwMF-g&c=7gilq_oJKU2hnacFUWFTuYqjMQ111TRstgx6WoATdXo&r=rmN0-qr5Eln-g1gUaHyVYuRu49HisUkVsryj3p8wWms&m=hcqvI85fp2LS9YV-fkdQwttaUS_e60-WTd7h1WwAGqk&s=H822KKzuzKu5acYJ_QcHg-LPPNwzLYRwaGwPGb1l0QY&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.orhealthleadershipcouncil.org_wp-2Dcontent_uploads_2017_09_HIT-2DCommons-2DBusiness-2DPlan-2DFINAL-2D9-2D2-2D17.pdf&d=DwMF-g&c=7gilq_oJKU2hnacFUWFTuYqjMQ111TRstgx6WoATdXo&r=rmN0-qr5Eln-g1gUaHyVYuRu49HisUkVsryj3p8wWms&m=hcqvI85fp2LS9YV-fkdQwttaUS_e60-WTd7h1WwAGqk&s=H822KKzuzKu5acYJ_QcHg-LPPNwzLYRwaGwPGb1l0QY&e=


Health Information Technology 

Oversight Council (HITOC)

Report to the Oregon Health Policy 

Board

Susan Otter, Director of HIT

Erick Doolen, HITOC Chair

Amy Henninger, MD, HITOC Vice Chair

Greg Van Pelt, HITOC member

September 12, 2017



HITOC relationship to the Board
• The Board is responsible for: 

– chartering HITOC and setting priorities, appointing members, 

and determining terms

– considering HITOC recommendations and taking action as 

appropriate

• HITOC is responsible to:

– Make recommendations to the Board related to health 

information technology to promote health system 

transformation

– Regularly review and report to the Board on: 

• Status of the Oregon Health IT program 

• Efforts of local, regional, and statewide organizations to 

participate in health IT systems

• Adoption and use of health IT

– Advise on federal changes that impact HIT
2



HITOC Recommendations for OHPB 

Action

• Approve its 2018-2020 work plan including continuing 

work and new priorities

• Endorse HITOC’s strategic recommendations in the 

HITOC HIT Strategic Plan, including:

– Development of the HIT Commons, a public/private partnership 

to govern statewide HIT initiatives

– A Network of Networks approach to achieving statewide health 

information exchange

3



How does Health IT support CCOs and the 

Coordinated Care Model?

Selected characteristics of the coordinated care model:

• Care coordination, population management 
throughout the system

• Integration of physical, behavioral, oral health

• Accountability, quality improvement and metrics 

• Alternative payment models

• Patient engagement 

Coordinated care model relies on access to 
patient information and the HIT 

infrastructure to share and analyze data

4



HIT Components for Coordinated Care 

Model

Foundational Components:

• Adoption and Use of Certified Electronic Health Records

• Health information exchange

• Clinical quality metrics reporting (e.g., CCO Quality Incentives)

Value-based payment and population management:

• Tools to support analytics, improve quality, manage risk

– Quality measurement and tying clinical outcomes to payment

– Risk stratification

– Care management and addressing care gaps

• New sources of data to have “line of sight” to innovate/adjust:

– Social determinants of health data

– High-value public health datasets

5



Goals of HIT-Optimized Health Care

1. Sharing Patient 
Information Across 

the Care Team

• Oregonians have their 
core health information 
available where needed 
so their care team can 
deliver person-centered, 
coordinated care.

2. Using Aggregated 

Data for System 
Improvement

• Clinical and 
administrative data are 
efficiently collected and 
used to support quality 
improvement, 
population health 
management, and 
incentivize improved 
health outcomes. 
Aggregated data and 
metrics are also used 
by policymakers and 
others to monitor 
performance and 
inform policy 
development. 

3. Patient Access to 

Their Own Health 
Information

• Individuals and their 
families access, use 
and contribute their 
clinical information to 
understand and 
improve their health 
and collaborate with 
their providers. 

6



Definition: “Network of Networks” for 

Health Information Exchange (HIE)

• Goal: Have minimum core data available wherever 

Oregonians receive care or services across the state

• “Network of Networks” for HIE:

– Build upon existing HIE investments and connect “networks” of HIE

– Coordinate stakeholders to develop the necessary framework for HIE 
including:

• Common rules of the road, technical and legal frameworks for cross-network 
exchange

• Any technology infrastructure necessary centrally

– Ensure interoperability to improve the use and value of information 
exchanged

– Ensure privacy and security practices are in place

– Provide neutral issue resolution

7



Definition: HIT Commons

• Public-private partnership to support and spread 
statewide HIT efforts in Oregon
– OHA and Oregon Health Leadership Council co-sponsored development 

of an HIT Commons Business Plan

– Building off the success of the Emergency Department Information 
Exchange (EDIE) public/private partnership

– Endorsed by OHA, OHLC, HITOC, and other stakeholders

• Key objectives:
– Establish neutral governing and decision-making process for investing in 

HIT efforts

– Leverage opportunities for shared funding of HIT with statewide impact

– Coordinate efforts for the adoption and spread of HIT initiatives

8



9

HITOC Key Priorities and Focus Areas



High Level HITOC Work Plan/ Discussion

• Policy Work
– Behavioral health information sharing
– Patient access, consent, and specially protected information
– Social determinants of health data sharing

• Strategic Development

– Strategies to support alternative payment models
– Furthering HIE “network of networks” development
– HIT Commons support and delineation of work

• HIT Environment and Reporting

– Explore opportunities for dashboards to measure statewide 
progress

HITOC oversight, monitoring work is ongoing

10



Oregon HIT highlights in 2016-2017

• High adoption of electronic health records 

• Health information exchange spreading:

– Widespread use of EDIE/PreManage

– New Oregon footprint for national HIE efforts

– Spread and investment in regional HIEs

• New “drivers” - value-based payment

– Medicare Meaningful Use transitioning to Merit-based 

Incentive Payment System (MIPS)

– Oregon alignments across payers and metrics planned

• Focus on population management, behavioral 

health and social determinants

11



Spread of HIE: EDIE/PreManage

• The Emergency Department Information 

Exchange (EDIE) Utility

– Collaborative effort led by the Oregon Health Leadership 
Council with OHA and other partners

– Provides critical hospital event information for ED

• PreManage

– Leverages EDIE data to provide real-time notifications to 
subscribers when their patient/member has a hospital event

– Dashboards provide real-time population-level view 

– Subscribers add key care guidelines

12



Adoption of hospital notifications by CCOs, 
hospitals, and Assertive Community Treatment 
(ACT) teams

13



EDIE Utility 2017 Evaluation

• Initial EDIE Utility goals were not realized, however recent 
trends suggest efforts are beginning to show reductions in 
utilization
• ED high utilizers with a care recommendation developed in 

EDIE/PreManage had a subsequent 10% reduction in ED visits

• EDIE and PreManage users consistently report real time 
information has greatly improved the efficiency and 
effectiveness of their care

• EDIE Utility model has been a successful public private 
partnership
• Public private partnership and inclusion of broad stakeholder 

representation has contributed to success

14



Robust HIEs support care coordination

Core HIE services

• Community Health Record

• Integrated eReferrals

• Hospital/Clinical Event Notifications 

• Results/reports from Lab, Pathology, Discharge summaries, etc.

Connecting across sectors and data sources:

• Dental, mental health and addictions treatment information 

• Spreading into post-acute, long term services and supports, social 

services, corrections

• Connecting to public health registries

Data for payers, value based payment

• Source of clinical data for payers, 

• Some adding claims data for providers
15



Regional Health Information Exchanges (May 2017)

16



Behavioral Health-focused work

• Improving the behavioral health system is key 

OHA and OHPB priority

• Several HIT efforts to support this work, 

including:

– HITOC responsible for HIT components within 

Behavioral Health Collaborative workplan

– Behavioral health agency HIT survey

– Federal HIT grant to support information exchange 

from the Office of National Coordinator for HIT (ONC)

– Electronic access to Prescription Drug Monitoring 

Program

17



1. Governance and finance: Regional governance 

model for behavioral health

2. Standards of care and competencies

3. Workforce

4. Information exchange and coordination of care

– Adoption of electronic health records (EHRs) 

– Health Information Exchange for care coordination 

– Data for treatment and quality improvement 

– Support for performance-based measures and payment 

models 

– Patient access

Behavioral Health Collaborative 

Recommendations Overview

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/HPA/CSI-BHP/Pages/Behavioral-Health-Collaborative.aspx

18

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/HPA/CSI-BHP/Pages/Behavioral-Health-Collaborative.aspx


Behavioral Health Agency HIT Survey: 

Methods Used for Information Exchange
M

o
re

 R
o
b

u
s
t

15

47

15

16

4

5

5

1

4

67

41

27

62

28

16

3

11

9

8

2

28

7

31

41

46

39

37

PAPER DO CUMENT  EXCHANG E 

F AX 

EF AX

SECURE EMAIL

DIRECT  SECURE MESSAG ING

SHARED EHR

EPIC  CARE EVERYWHERE

REG IO NAL  O R PRIVAT E HEAL T H 

INF O RMAT IO N EXCHANG E

PREMANAG E

Most/All Some/Little None

Preliminary OHA survey results, June 2017.

95 out of 285 BH agencies (33%), represents 389 programs out of 883 total (44%)

19



Behavioral Health Agency HIT Survey: 

Top Barriers for Electronic Sharing

Top Barriers to Electronic 

Sharing
Count

Response 

Rate

1 Financial Cost 73 77%

2
Concerns about privacy and 

security
61 64%

3
Technical resources are 

limited
58 61%

4
Concerns over liability of re-

disclosure of information
47 49%

Preliminary OHA survey results, June 2017.

95 out of 285 BH agencies (33%), represents 389 programs out of 883 total (44%)

20



Federal grant: Advancing Interoperable HIT 

Services to Support HIE Cooperative 

Agreement (Office of National Coordinator for HIT)

• Oregon’s project: $2.2m, July 2015-July 2017
– OHA Subgrantee: Reliance eHealth Collaborative (formerly 

Jefferson HIE)

– Address barriers to HIE and care coordination; integrate 
behavioral and physical health data 

• Common consent model for sharing specially protected health 
information (e.g., 42 CFR Part 2) 

• Connect with the Veterans Administration (VA), EDIE and 
Prescription Drug Monitoring Program 

• OHA Behavioral Health Information Sharing Workgroup
– Developed webinars, FAQs and other resources to work to 

clarify misconceptions and confusion

– Provider toolkit will share consent model tools

www.oregon.gov/oha/HPA/CSI-BHP/Pages/Behavioral-Health-Info.aspx

21

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/HPA/CSI-BHP/Pages/Behavioral-Health-Info.aspx


HIE Onboarding Program (2018-2021)

Priority Provider types Specific Providers 

Behavioral health 
CMHPs, CCBHCs, behavioral health homes, ACT teams, 

mobile crisis teams 

Oral health 
Clinics and providers serving Medicaid members, including 

those contracted with managed care entities and those 

serving fee for service (i.e., open card) populations 

Critical physical health 
Medicaid providers who participate in: PCPCH, FQHCs, 

RHCs, CPC+, tribal health, equity-focused clinics, county 

corrections health 

Major trading partners
Major trading partners that create value for priority Medicaid 

providers 

Later phases likely to include: Long term supports and services, social services, etc.

The planned Health Information Exchange (HIE) Onboarding Program will support the 
initial costs of connecting (onboarding) priority Medicaid providers to a community-
based HIE that provides meaningful HIE opportunities and that plays a vital role for 
Medicaid in that community.

22



HIT and HIE Experience

Amy Henninger, MD

HITOC Vice Chair

Deputy Medical Director, Multnomah County



Key Highlights/ Changes to HITOC 

Strategic Plan (2017-2020)

• Continue support and development Oregon HIT 
Program services 
– Support for technology services underway: EDIE, Provider Directory, 

Clinical Quality Metrics Registry, Common Credentialing Program, etc.

– Expanded focus on access to robust HIE

• New concepts:
– Implement Network of Networks for statewide HIE

– Launch the HIT Commons public/private partnership

• Updated HITOC work plan and policy work 
– Reflect changing environment and new opportunities with technology 

and payment models

24



Statewide HIE and “Network of Networks”

• Goal to have minimum core data available wherever 

Oregonians receive care or services across the state

• Basic movement of health information is improving but 

– Significant gaps remain

– Barriers to HIE: technology, organizational culture, trust

– Ensuring HIE is meaningful is complex

• “Raising all boats” to connect providers across the state 

can best be accomplished together 

– Statewide efforts and shared governance can play a 

significant role

• Requires statewide “trust framework(s)” to ensure 
privacy and security

25



“Network of Networks” for Health 

Information Exchange

• Build upon existing HIE investments and connect 
“networks” of HIE

• Coordinate stakeholders to develop the necessary 

framework for HIE including:

– Common rules of the road, technical and legal frameworks for 
cross-network exchange

– Any technology infrastructure necessary centrally

• Ensure interoperability to improve the use and value of 

information exchanged

• Ensure privacy and security practices are in place

• Provide neutral issue resolution

26



HIT Commons

Greg Van Pelt

President

Oregon Health Leadership Council



• Establish a stakeholder-led, neutral governance and 

decision-making process for investing in HIT efforts

• Leverage opportunities for shared funding of efforts with 

statewide impact

• Coordinate efforts to enable a network of networks for 

HIE

• Facilitate access to high-value data (e.g., Prescription 

Drug Monitoring Program)

• Support core infrastructure needed for care coordination 

and alternative payment models

Why pursue an HIT Commons? 

Key Opportunities and Objectives

28



• Achieve HIT goals more effectively with critical mass –
• Coordinate and support shared interests of health care stakeholders 

and OHA to meet the vision of a transformed health delivery system 

optimized by HIT

• Support cooperation and data sharing to improve care for all 
Oregonians

• Accelerate adoption and spread of HIT initiatives

• Support a stakeholder-led process that allows those closest to the 
work ability to govern and direct efforts

• Shared equitable funding supports entities that face 

resource barriers to “raise all boats”
• Maximize Oregon’s state and federal resources to advance HIT 

optimized health care

Anticipated Benefits of an HIT 

Commons

29



Building an HIT Commons Business 

Plan

• Goal: Build an HIT Commons model to accelerate Oregon’s progress 

toward an HIT-optimized health care delivery system

• Build on the success of EDIE/PreManage Governance model

• OHA grant to OHLC, joint team to staff effort

• Sensing Sessions: 

• Staff-led discussions with HITOC and other advisory committees and 
individual stakeholders to gather themes, over 50 organizations 

represented

• HIT Commons Interim Advisory Group: 

• Limited duration, interim committee to lead evaluation & merit of 

Public/Private partnership for HIT

30



HIT Commons Umbrella Structure

31



Potential Health IT Governance “Galaxy”

32

HITOC

PDAC

CCAGHCOP HIT 
Commons

EDIE 
Utility

Network 
of 

Networks

PDMP 
Gateway 
Funding

Other 
Efforts

Public Advisory 

and Oversight Bodies

OHIT 
(OHA)

Policy 

Board

HIT 
Portfolio 

Exec 
Steering

OHLC

HITAG

PDAC: Provider Directory Advisory Committee

CCAG: Common Credentialing Advisory Group
HCOP: HIT/HIE Community and Organizational Panel
HITAG: CCO HIT Advisory Group



• Each initiative will establish success metrics

• HIT Commons potential governance measures (to be defined by the 

new board): 

 HIT Commons projects are statewide in nature or have broad impact on 

health care delivery

 Oregon health care stakeholders are aware and feel represented by HIT 

Commons

 HIT Commons projects advance HITOC stated goals

 HIT Commons projects have clear value propositions (Financial ROI, 

measurable in quality, care delivery, experience of care)

 Next Steps:

 Fall 2017: Stakeholder presentations, endorsements

 2018: Transition to new HIT Commons 

HIT Commons Success Measures 

and Next Steps

33



HITOC Recommendations for OHPB 

Action

• Approve its 2018-2020 work plan including continuing 

work and new priorities

• Endorse HITOC’s strategic recommendations in the 

HITOC HIT Strategic Plan, including:

– Development of the HIT Commons, a public/private partnership 

to govern statewide HIT initiatives

– A Network of Networks approach to achieving statewide health 

information exchange

34



Learn more about Oregon’s HIT/HIE developments and 
Subscribe to our email list!
www.HealthIT.Oregon.gov

OHA Behavioral Health Information Sharing Resources:
www.oregon.gov/oha/HPA/CSI-BHP/Pages/Behavioral-Health-Info.aspx

Susan Otter
Director of Health Information Technology

Susan.Otter@state.or.us

Oregon Health Leadership Council HIT Initiatives:
http://www.orhealthleadershipcouncil.org/edie/

35

http://healthit.oregon.gov/
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/HPA/CSI-BHP/Pages/Behavioral-Health-Info.aspx
mailto:Susan.Otter@state.or.us
http://www.orhealthleadershipcouncil.org/edie/


Oregon’s Strategic Plan 
for Health Information Technology
and Health Information Exchange 

(2017–2020)
Health Information Technology Oversight Council (HITOC)

September 2017

Health Policy and Analytics Division
Office of Health Information Technology

Rev
iew

 co
py



Table of Contents

Executive summary ..................................................................................................3

Vision, goals, principles and priorities ....................................................................6
Vision ....................................................................................................................6
Goals ....................................................................................................................6
Principles for statewide HIT efforts .........................................................................6
Overarching aims and objectives ............................................................................8
Priorities and policy context for HIT efforts (2017–2020) ..........................................9
Oregon HIT Program and HITOC workplan and milestones ..................................... 14

Oregon HIT landscape ............................................................................................ 16
Progress (2014-2017) ........................................................................................... 16
Challenges .......................................................................................................... 19

Roles in achieving HIT-optimized health care .......................................................23
State’s role ..........................................................................................................23
The role of other key stakeholders ........................................................................ 24

The path to statewide HIE coverage ......................................................................27
Goals for statewide HIE ........................................................................................ 27
Principles of statewide HIE ................................................................................... 27
High value use cases to guide efforts ...................................................................28
Approaches to achieve statewide HIE ................................................................... 31

The HIT Commons: A public-private partnership governance model ...................36
Background on HIT governance efforts .................................................................36
Develop a HIT Commons ......................................................................................36
Organizational model and key considerations ....................................................... 37

Technology needed for alternative payment models ............................................41
Efforts to advance HIT for alternative payment models .......................................... 41

Patient access to health information .....................................................................43
Efforts to support improved patient engagement through HIT ................................43

Conclusion ..............................................................................................................45

Appendix A. Opportunities for future investments................................................46

Appendix B. Past work and contributors ...............................................................47

STRATEGIC PLAN
for Health Information Technology
and Health Information Exchange



3

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Oregon Health Authority (OHA) envisions a transformed health system where health 
information technology (HIT) efforts ensure that the care Oregonians receive is optimized 
by HIT. 

In an “HIT-optimized” health care system:

• Oregonians have their core health information available where needed so their 
care team can deliver person-centered, coordinated care.

• Clinical and administrative data are efficiently collected and used to support 
quality improvement and population health management, and incentivize 
improved health outcomes. Aggregated data and metrics are also used by 
policymakers and others to monitor performance and inform policy development. 

• Individuals and their families access, use and contribute their clinical information 
to understand and improve their health and collaborate with their providers.

Oregon’s HIT efforts are guided by overarching priorities of OHA and the Oregon Health 
Policy Board (OHPB) within a constantly shifting health care environment. OHPB’s 
Action Plan for Health, created in 2010 and refreshed in 2017, sets a clear direction 
for advancing health in Oregon, and HIT plays a critical role in several key initiatives, 
including expanding the coordinated care model, integrating physical, behavioral and oral 
health, and moving upstream to address the social determinants of health.

The Action Plan for 
Health: Foundational 
strategies 

• Pay for outcomes  
and value

• Shift focus upstream

• Improve health equity

• Increase access to  
health care

• Enhance care  
coordination

• Engage stakeholders  
and community partners

• Measure progress

Oregon’s HIT Priorities 

• Support alternative 
payment models

• Support social 
determinants of health  
data and partners

• Support integration of 
physical, behavioral and 
oral health

• Support sharing  
information and care 
coordination and promote 
patient access to data

• Align across stakeholders 
and develop partnerships

• Monitor and adapt to 
changing environment

Oregon’s HIT Focus 
Areas (2017-2020) 

• HIT to support value-
based care and alternative 
payment models

• Support high-value data 
sources, including the 
social determinants of 
health 

• Spread health information 
exchange and patient 
access to health data

• Implement core HIT 
infrastructure

• Develop shared  
governance for long-term 
HIT sustainability and 
alignment



4

Path to statewide health information exchange
Oregon has made progress in spreading health information exchange (HIE) through 
regional HIE efforts, health care organization investments, vendor-led networks, and 
national approaches and solutions. Significant gaps remain, however, especially in 
regions and settings that face resource barriers. Future work will focus on the  
following approaches:

1. Supporting and connecting a robust networks of HIEs

2. Providing baseline HIT services to those facing barriers

3. Offering statewide enabling infrastructure to leverage existing investments  
and opportunities

4. Providing access to high-value data sources

5. Coordinating stakeholders to establish a shared governance model

New opportunities for public/private partnership: HIT Commons
The HIT Commons is an envisioned public-private partnership to advance HIT in  
Oregon by convening stakeholders in a neutral setting, coordinating shared HIT  
efforts and creating sustainable funding mechanisms for shared investments. 

The HIT Commons builds on the success of the Emergency Department Information 
Exchange (EDIE) Utility and will grow through a “crawl, walk, run” model. OHA and  
the Oregon Health Leadership Council (OHLC) will co-sponsor the HIT Commons and 
provide initial support, along with payers, CCOs, hospitals and provider participants. 
OHLC will provide fiscal and management support for an initial period, after which a 
separate nonprofit organization is expected to form. 

Initial work will focus on continuing the successful work of the EDIE Utility and OHLC’s 
Administration Simplification Committee (including single sign-on work), providing 
funding for statewide access to the HIT Prescription Drug Monitoring Program (PMP) 
Gateway, and beginning work to coordinate the HIE Network of Networks.

Oregon HIT Program work ahead and key results
Much work is underway to support these efforts.  While foundational programs  
support effective use of electronic health records (EHRs) and initial HIE services,  
new work is being developed to provide:

• Statewide HIT infrastructure

• Financial support to spread HIE and coordination of a Network of  
Networks to ensure HIE is available and connected statewide

• New programs to support alternative payment models



5

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

• A focus on adoption and spread of HIT and initiatives and 

• New access to high-value data.

Health Information Technology Oversight Council’s work ahead

OHA remains committed to monitoring the rapidly changing landscape of technology 
innovation and health care reform. Efforts to understand the changing landscape are 
ongoing. To ensure strategies are linked with changes in the landscape, the Health 
Information Technology Oversight Council (HITOC) will review sections of this strategic 
plan on an annual basis to create a rolling three-year plan. This will help ensure that 
strategies are linked to opportunities and can account for changes in the rapidly  
shifting environment. 

In addition, HITOC will focus on monitoring the changing landscape and developing  
data dashboards, milestones and measures of success that provide insights into 
Oregon’s progress in achieving HIT-optimized care. 



6

Office of the National 
Coordinator vision for HIE

“All patients, their families, and 
providers should expect consistent 
and timely access to standardized 
health information that can be 
securely shared between primary 
care providers, specialists, hospitals, 
behavioral health, Long-Term Post-
Acute Care, home and community-
based services, other support and 
enabling services providers, care  
and case managers and coordinators, 
and other authorized individuals  
and institutions.”

Office of the National Coordinator  
for HIT (ONC). Strategy and principles 
to accelerate HIE, August 2013,

VISION, GOALS, PRINCIPLES AND PRIORITIES

Vision
OHA envisions a transformed health system where HIT efforts ensure that the care 
Oregonians receive is optimized by HIT.

Goals
In an “HIT-optimized” health care system:

1. Oregonians have their core health information available 
where needed so their care team can deliver person-
centered, coordinated care.

2. Clinical and administrative data are efficiently collected 
and used to support quality improvement and population 
health management, and incentivize improved health 
outcomes. Aggregated data and metrics are also used 
by policymakers and others to monitor performance and 
inform policy development. 

3. Individuals and their families access, use and contribute 
their clinical information to understand and improve their 
health and collaborate with their providers.

Principles for statewide HIT efforts
The following principles guide the work toward  
HIT-optimized care:

Leverage existing resources and national standards,  
while anticipating changes:

• Consider investments and resources already in place.

• Leverage Meaningful Use and national standards; 
anticipate standards as they evolve.

• Monitor and adapt to changing federal, state and local 
environments. 

Demonstrate incremental progress, cultivate support and  
establish credibility:

• Advance efforts through incrementalism: Define a 
manageable scope, deliver and then expand. 



7

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

• Communicate frequently with measureable progress. Demonstrate optimal  
value for patients and providers toward the triple aim of better health,  
better care, and lower costs. 

• Provide public transparency into development and operations of  
statewide resources.

• Be a good steward of limited public resources.

• Establish long-term financial, leadership, and political sustainability. 

• Seek broad stakeholder involvement and support. Statewide resources  
cannot be developed alone.

Create services with value:

• Maximize benefits to Oregonians while considering costs. Do not disenfranchise 
(“do no harm”) and be inclusive of providers that face barriers to participation.

• Support provider participation in HIT-optimized health care; meet providers  
where they are. Recognize the challenges especially for smaller, independent 
providers and providers who are not eligible for federally funded EHR incentives. 

• Prioritize efforts to achieve a common good that local entities could not do on 
their own.

• Cultivate and communicate about value at the individual, provider, system and 
state levels. Champions and personal stories can be very effective.

• Support new models of HIT-optimized health care that result in better quality, 
whole person care and improved health outcomes and lower costs for all.

Protect the health information of Oregonians:

• Ensure information sharing is private and secure and complies with HIPAA  
and other protections. 



8

Overarching aims and objectives

Goal 1: Aims and objectives 

Oregonians have their core health information available where needed so their care 
team can deliver person-centered, coordinated care.

1. Increased adoption of standards-based technology for data capture,  
use and exchange

2. Improved ability to capture, produce and use interoperable standards-based 
data in formats structured to be integrated and automated within EHRs and 
workflows 

3. Improved access to and sharing of meaningful patient information across 
organizational and technological boundaries  

4. Improved provider experience and workflows, reduced burden, and 
increased workforce capacity

Goal 2: Aims and objectives 

Clinical and administrative data are efficiently collected and used to support quality 
improvement and population health management, and incentivize improved health 
outcomes. Aggregated data and metrics are also used by policymakers and others 
to monitor performance and inform policy development.

1. Improved use of HIT tools for data collection, analytics, and reporting 

2. Increased use of aggregated data, including clinical data for population 
management, quality improvement, and alternative payment methods

3. Reduced reporting burden for data needed to support the coordinated care 
model across programs

Goal 3: Aims and objectives 

Individuals and their families access, use and contribute their clinical information  
to understand and improve their health and collaborate with their providers. 

1. Increased patient access to/use of their complete health records

2. Improved ability for individuals to provide relevant information to their  
health records  

3. Increased use of HIT by patients to engage providers (e.g., patient portals, 
e-visits, messaging, remote monitoring)



9

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

Priorities and policy context for HIT efforts (2017–2020)
OHA’s work toward HIT-optimized care is connected to and aligned with broader efforts 
to improve and transform health care delivery in Oregon. The Action Plan for Health, a 
health system transformation roadmap established by the Oregon Health Policy Board in 
2010 and revised in 2017, guides much of the broader work.  The Action Plan for Health 
identifies seven foundational strategies, which Oregon’s HIT priorities and focus areas for 
2017–2020 support.

Crosscutting Aims and objectives 

1. Improved culture of HIT-optimized health care where providers and other 
stakeholders value and expect electronic access to shared information

2. Increased alignment of standards to promote interoperability

3. Improved distribution of financial burden for supporting HIT investments as 
payment models evolve

4. Ensured protection of privacy and security of electronic health information

Action Plan for Health: 
foundational strategies 

• Pay for outcomes  
and value

• Shift focus upstream

• Improve health equity

• Increase access to  
health care

• Enhance care coordination

• Engage stakeholders and 
community partners

• Measure progress

Oregon’s HIT priorities 

• Support alternative 
payment models

• Support social 
determinants of health  
data and partners

• Support integration of 
physical, behavioral and 
oral health

• Support sharing  
information and care 
coordination and promote 
patient access to data 

• Align across stakeholders 
and develop partnerships

• Monitor and adapt to 
changing environment

Oregon’s HIT focus 
areas (2017–2020) 

• HIT to support value-
based care and alternative 
payment models

• Support high-value data 
sources, including the 
social determinants of 
health 

• Spread health information 
exchange and patient 
access to health data

• Implement core HIT 
infrastructure

• Develop shared  
governance for long-term 
HIT sustainability and 
alignment



10

The opportunities and stakeholder priorities driven by policy, regulatory and financial 
changes also influence Oregon’s HIT priorities.  Below are a few of the major changes 
in the health care context and policy environment that will affect HIT work over the next 
few years.

Policy context topic Description and impact

Medicare Meaningful Use transitions to 
Medicare Access and CHIP Reauthoritzation 
Act (MACRA) Quality Payment Program – 
Merit-Based Incentive Payment System (MIPS)

MACRA legislation created the Quality Payment 
Program –MIPS (that adjusts Medicare 
payment based on quality outcomes and use of 
HIT) to start in 2017.

Comprehensive Primary Care Plus (CPC+) Many Oregon CCOs and major payers, OHA 
and CMS/Medicare are supporting more than 
150 Oregon primary care clinics with this 
alternative payment model, which will require 
data aggregation and care coordination, and 
will rely on HIT to support the CPC+ objectives.

Primary Care Payment Reform Collaborative Will transform payment for primary care 
and work on data aggregation and reporting 
necessary for care improvement and value-
based payment.  This legislatively authorized 
collaborative will include a broader group of 
Oregon payers and clinics and will likely align 
data efforts with the CPC+ group.

Health Plan Quality Metrics Committee This legislatively mandated committee is 
working to align performance metrics for CCOs 
and Oregon health plans, including clinical 
quality metrics.

Patient-Centered Primary Care Home (PCPCH) 
Program 

Oregon’s PCPCH program recognizes primary 
care clinics that meet statewide criteria, 
including expectations for the use of HIT.  
PCPCH tier status is tied to payment models, 
such that higher-tier PCPCHs have financial 
incentives. The program is transitioning from 
three tiers to five tiers to provide advanced 
recognition of progress.

Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic 
(CCBHC) program

CCBHC is a federal pilot initiative through 2019 
to transform payment for behavioral health 
providers to a value-base model, requiring the 
use of HIT for care improvement and metrics 
tracking. Oregon has about a dozen behavioral 
health organizations participating as CCBHCs, 
and has state-specific standards including 
expectations for use of HIT.



11

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

To support these efforts, the following areas of focus for Oregon’s HIT efforts for 2017–
2020 have been identified:

1. Spread health information exchange, patient access to data and other 
HIT efforts 
 
The vision of the coordinated care model is seamless care across providers and 
organizations. Thus, HIE is a key enabler for the coordinated care model, and 
there are significant opportunities to leverage HIT and HIE to reduce barriers and 
improve communication. To reap the full benefits of HIT, critical users need to 
be connected to meaningful HIE opportunities. Past work has focused on EHR 
adoption and building the foundation for HIE and care coordination. Future work 
will involve ensuring that key providers and other critical care team members are 
connected to robust HIE. 
 
HIT is also critical to promoting the integration of physical, behavioral and oral 
health. A key part of that work is improving Oregon’s behavioral health system, 
and that improvement effort involves several HIT components. For instance, 
the Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic (CCBHC) program includes 
requirements for the use of HIT and the reporting of performance metrics. 
Oregon stakeholders recently convened the Behavioral Health Collaborative, 
which resulted in a series of recommendations on improving behavioral health 
information sharing and reducing barriers to data access. 
 
HIT can also help patients access their health information and better engage with 
their health care providers. This allows patients to participate more fully with their 
care team and can improve the effectiveness of health care interventions. Key 
HIT efforts include supporting initiatives such as OpenNotes that support patient 
access to clinician notes, engaging providers to increase the value of patient 
access and engagement, and helping spread best practices.

Policy context topic Description and impact

Behavioral Health Collaborative This 2016/2017 OHA-led stakeholder 
group made recommendations to help 
transform Oregon’s behavioral health system. 
Implementation of recommendations will occur 
over the next several years.  One of the four 
overarching recommendations focuses on 
technology and data, and HITOC will play a  
role in overseeing HIT-specific components of 
this work.

The future of CCOs OHPB provides input to OHA and the legislature 
on the future of CCOs as OHA prepares for the 
next phase.



12

2. Implement core HIT infrastructure 
 
Significant progress has already been made on the planning and development of 
core infrastructure to support HIT, including the Oregon Common Credentialing 
Program, Provider Directory and an HIT gateway to the Prescription Drug 
Monitoring Program. Future work will focus on implementation and launch of 
these services and the successful spread of their use.

3. Support value-based care and alternative payment models 
 
HIT can support the shift from fee-for-service models of payment to alternative 
payment models that reward value and outcomes, which is crucial for health 
system transformation. These new payment models create requirements to track 
and report outcomes, and incentivize efforts to improve care coordination and 
health across populations. They also create an opportunity for aligned interests 
and shared need between health care payers and providers.

4. Develop shared governance for long-term sustainability and alignment 
 
Bringing together stakeholders and creating sustainable financing for HIT 
investments is crucial to long-term success. A public-private partnership also 
has the ability to leverage significant federal support while aligning interests of 
providers, payers and patients.

5. Support high-value data sources, including information related to 
social determinants of health 
 
To support care coordination and population health efforts, new initiatives will 
also explore opportunities to leverage high-value data sources, such as public 
health registries and non-clinical sources of data that can be useful in addressing 
the social determinants of health. At the same time, work is needed to ensure 
patient confidentiality and address issues around stigma and privacy.



13

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

Oregon’s HIT areas of focus: past, current, future

• Focus on physical health: 
EHR adoption and 
Meaningful Use

• Enable basic HIE: Direct 
secure messaging and 
regional efforts

• Support for care 
coordination (CCOs, 
PCPCHs and local HIE)

• Develop core infrastructure 
(e.g. Provider Directory)

• Pilots for telehealth, 
OpenNotes, behavioral 
health sharing

• Spread health information 
exchange

• Implement core HIT 
infrastructure

• Support for value based 
care and alternative 
payment models

• Develop shared governance 
for long-term sustainability 
and alignment

• Support high-value data 
sources, including the 
social determinants of 
health

Past work Current work Future work



14

2017 2018 2019 2020+

Program continous until 2021

Program continues until May 2019

Implementation  
and launch

Full operations

Implementation  
and launch

Full operations

Implementation  
and launch

Live for  
CCO/MEHRIP

Potential 
expansion

Development  
Launch

Phase one provider onboarding through 2021

Phase two through 2021

CareAccord operational – regular evaluation of effectiveness and value

FFD transitions to Provider Directory

Planning, coordination  
and legal agreements

Explore future  
infrastructure needs

EDIE Utility pilot ends

OHA – sponsored Statewide Medicaid subscription to PreManage

Transition to HIT Commons

Planning
Initial start-up  

under OHLC
Transition to 501(c)(3)

Development
Focus on HIE Network of Networks, 
PMP Gateway, adoption/spread of 
initiatives (e.g., Open notes, etc.)

Determine future 
priorities

Launch PMP 
Gateway

Offer gateway subscription statewide

Ongoing pilots and initatives to explore expanded  
access to high value data

Medicaid EHR Incentive 
Program (MEHRIP)

Oregon Medicaid Meaningful 
Use TA Program (OMMUTAP)

Common credentialing

Provider directory

Clinical quality  
metrics registry

HIE Onboarding program

CareAccord and Flat File Directory 
for Direct secure messaging

Network of Networks for HIE

EDIE Utility and PreManage

HIT Commons

HIT Commons - New projects

Access to high-value data 
(e.g., POLST, PDMP, other 
public health registries)

Oregon HIT Program and HITOC workplan and milestones
Several bodies of work address the priorities described above. The following chart 
describes key programs and timelines. Strategies described in sections 5–8 provide 
additional information.

Program

EH
R 

 
ad

op
tio

n/
us

e
De

ve
lo

p 
HI

T 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

Sp
re

ad
 H

IE
 a

nd
 

HI
T 

fo
r A

PM
s

Sh
ar

ed
  

go
ve

rn
an

ce
Hi

gh
-v

al
ue

 
da

ta



15

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

Milestones
Key high-level results and milestones over the next three years are currently in 
development. Milestone types are expected to vary depending on the stage of an effort, 
as described below:

Once HITOC develops milestones and key results, OHA expects to collect baseline data 
and begin developing data dashboards to better monitor statewide HIT progress.

HITOC role and workplan (2017–2020)

Oregon’s legislature charged HITOC with overseeing the Oregon HIT Program, 
monitoring the HIT landscape in Oregon, developing long-term strategies to advance 
HIT and making recommendations to the Oregon Health Policy Board  and the Oregon 
Congressional delegation. HITOC reports to the OHPB, which sets HITOC priorities and 
membership, endorses HITOC recommendations and guides HITOC work to ensure 
Oregon’s health system transformation efforts are supported by the right HIT.

Key work for HITOC in 2017–2020 includes coordinating with the HIT Commons 
(described in Section 6), developing additional data-driven milestones to measure 
progress, updating HIT strategies and recommendations, and staying abreast of the 
constantly changing landscape

High Level HITOC Work Plan

Initiation/launch Access Adoption  
and use

Value/ROI

  

DRAFT FOR REVIEW: Oregon’s Strategic Plan for HIT and HIE (2017-2020), August 2017 14 
 

HITOC role and work plan (2017–2020) 

Oregon’s legislature charged HITOC with overseeing the Oregon HIT Program, monitoring the HIT 
landscape in Oregon, developing long-term strategies to advance HIT and making recommendations to 
the Oregon Health Policy Board  and the Oregon Congressional delegation.  HITOC reports to the OHPB, 
which sets HITOC priorities and membership, endorses HITOC recommendations and guides HITOC work 
to ensure Oregon’s health system transformation efforts are supported by the right HIT. 

Key work for HITOC in 2017–2020 includes coordinating with the HIT Commons (described in Section 6), 
developing additional data-driven milestones to measure progress, updating HIT strategies and 
recommendations, and staying abreast of the constantly changing landscape. 

 

  

Commented [GM9]: Dan – change to “High-level HITOC work 
plan” 

Commented [GM8]: High-level HITOC work plan 
 
First column: 
Policy topics 
Strategic planning 
HIT environment 
Federal policy 
 
Second column: 
Other Oregon Health Policy Board or HITOC-identified topics 
Delete “, etc.” after “Onboarding Program” 
Legislative report in summer 2017 
OHPB report in September 2017 
Federal law/policy considerations (e.g., ACA, MACRA, 21st 
Century…” 
 
Third column 
2018–2020 [change to en-dash] 
…(e.g., long-term services and supports, SDoH, ARMs) 



16

OREGON HIT LANDSCAPE

Progress (2014–2017)
Since the development of the last strategic plan (2014–2017), significant progress  
has been made in achieving HIT-optimized care. 

Progress on governance and accountability frameworks

• House Bill (HB) 2294 (2015) reset the HITOC under the leadership of the  
Oregon Health Policy Board, solidifying alignment of HIT efforts within health 
system transformation efforts. HB 2294 also created the Oregon HIT Program, 
which allowed OHA to provide HIT services beyond state programs, and explicitly 
authorized OHA to participate in partnerships and shared governance efforts to 
accelerate HIT-optimized care in Oregon.

• Initial planning for the HIT Commons, a public-private partnership to advance  
HIT, is underway. This effort, led by OHA and the Oregon Health Leadership 
Council, will provide a neutral convening space to coordinate HIT activities, 
leverage shared funding for sustainable investments, and accelerate the  
spread and use of HIT.  

HIE is spreading:

• Oregon provider practices are using EHRs more, which improves providers’  
ability to access medical records across systems. 

 » Oregon providers and hospitals are in the top tier of states accessing  
millions of federal EHR meaningful use incentive dollars each year. 

 » Many providers are using EHR-based HIE capabilities, such as Epic’s 
CareEverywhere and other EHR-based hub solutions, to exchange and 
access information.

 » Key Medicaid providers and clinics have received support and technical 
assistance through the Oregon Medicaid Meaningful Use Technical 
Assistance Program (OMMUTAP). 

  

DRAFT FOR REVIEW: Oregon’s Strategic Plan for HIT and HIE (2017-2020), August 2017 15 
 

3. Oregon HIT landscape 
 

Progress (2014–2017) 
 
Since the development of the last strategic plan (2014–2017), significant progress has been made in 
achieving HIT-optimized care.  
 

Progress on governance and accountability frameworks 

 House Bill (HB) 2294 (2015) reset the HITOC under the leadership of the Oregon Health Policy 
Board, solidifying alignment of HIT efforts within health system transformation efforts. HB 2294 
also created the Oregon HIT Program, which allowed OHA to provide HIT services beyond state 
programs, and explicitly authorized OHA to participate in partnerships and shared governance 
efforts to accelerate HIT-optimized care in Oregon. 

 Initial planning for the HIT Commons, a public-private partnership to advance HIT, is underway. 
This effort, led by OHA and the Oregon Health Leadership Council, will provide a neutral 
convening space to coordinate HIT activities, leverage shared funding for sustainable 
investments, and accelerate the spread and use of HIT.   

HIE is spreading: 

 Oregon provider practices are using EHRs more, which improves providers’ ability to access 
medical records across systems.  

o Oregon providers and hospitals are in 
the top tier of states accessing 
millions of federal EHR meaningful 
use incentive dollars each year.  

o Many providers are using EHR-based 
HIE capabilities, such as Epic’s 
CareEverywhere and other EHR-
based hub solutions, to exchange and 
access information. 

o Key Medicaid providers and clinics 
have received support and technical 
assistance through the Oregon 
Medicaid Meaningful Use Technical 
Assistance Program (OMMUTAP).  

 Regional HIEs have grown throughout the state, with coverage in several regions. National 
efforts such as e-Health Exchange, Commonwell, and Carequality have an established presence 
in Oregon and continue to grow (see further description on next page).  

 OHA supports HIE by offering no-cost access to Direct secure messaging through its CareAccord 
program. CareAccord allows organizations that do not have EHRs or that are facing barriers to 
electronic health information sharing the ability to securely exchange health information with 
different care teams across care settings. CareAccord serves more than 150 organizations and 
1,500 users; its transaction volume tripled in 2016. CareAccord also administers the Flat File 

Commented [GM10]: Section 3 

Commented [GM12]: Change title to “EHR adoption of CCO 
provider networks” 

Commented [GM11]: Change title to “HER adoption of CCO 
provider networks” 



17

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

• Regional HIEs have grown throughout the state, with coverage in several  
regions. National efforts such as e-Health Exchange, Commonwell, and 
Carequality have an established presence in Oregon and continue to grow  
(see further description on next page). 

• OHA supports HIE by offering no-cost access to Direct secure messaging 
through its CareAccord program. CareAccord allows organizations that do not 
have EHRs or that are facing barriers to electronic health information sharing 
the ability to securely exchange health information with different care teams 
across care settings. CareAccord serves more than 150 organizations and 1,500 
users; its transaction volume tripled in 2016. CareAccord also administers the 
Flat File Directory, which has grown to provide information on more than 10,000 
Direct secure messaging addresses from more than 550 unique health care 
organizations (primary care, hospital, behavioral health, dentistry, Federally 
Qualified Health Center, etc.). 

• OHA — in partnership with the OHLC, Oregon’s hospitals, payers and CCOs — 
launched the EDIE Utility. EDIE alerts provide emergency departments across 
the state with critical visit history and care coordination information for patients 
who experience frequent ED visits and/or have complex care needs. PreManage 
provides this same critical information to health plans, CCOs, primary care 
clinics, behavioral health providers, oral health and others. This information 
allows them to proactively coordinate care with the EDs through entering patient 
care recommendations and care histories. EDIE and PreManage services seek 
to improve care coordination and reduce emergency department use for patients 
with frequent ED visits. All Oregon hospitals (except the Veterans’ Affairs) 
are currently participating in EDIE. Hundreds of clinics, 11 CCOs and several 
commercial health plans now use PreManage.

National interoperability efforts and options with significant 
presence in Oregon

eHealth Exchange

The eHealth Exchange is a group of federal agencies (Department of Veterans 
Affairs, Department of Defense, Social Security Administration), hospital systems, 
medical groups, and state and regional HIEs that exchange health information in 
order to improve patient care, streamline disability benefit claims, and improve 
public health reporting. Participants operate under a comprehensive, multi-party 
trust agreement (the DURSA) among public and private organizations that desire 
to engage in electronic health information exchange. The initiative is most known 



18

for query-based, peer-to-peer document exchange, but also supports document 
submission and publish-subscribe exchange models.

Carequality

Carequality is a multi-stakeholder collaborative that formed to help providers 
share clinical data across multiple networks and HIT systems. Using a 
consensus-based, use case-driven process, Carequality has developed a 
common interoperability framework, including legal and technical specifications, 
to enable connectivity across participating networks. Many of the largest  
EHR vendors are members of Carequality. EHR vendors must become 
“implementers” of Carequality; their users may then elect to participate.  
The first use case implemented is a query-based document retrieval and other 
use cases are in development.  

• EHR vendor “implementers” with major Oregon footprint include  
Epic, GE Healthcare/Centricity, NextGen, Allscripts, eClinicalWorks, 
athenahealth, Netsmart.

CommonWell Health Alliance

CommonWell Health Alliance is a multi-vendor association that provides core 
services and infrastructure to enable the exchange of patient clinical data. These 
include a master patient index for patient identity and matching, records locator 
and retrieval, and access and consent management solutions. CommonWell 
members include large EHR vendors and other HIT solutions, such as personal 
health records. 

• EHR vendor members with major Oregon footprint include Cerner, 
McKesson, Meditech, Allscripts, Greenway, eClinicalWorks, athenahealth.

Vendor-specific HIE efforts

Many vendors have developed proprietary HIE solutions that connect users of the 
same EHR product. Epic’s Care Everywhere, for instance, is a tool within the Epic 
electronic medical record that allows Epic users to securely share patient records 
with other health care providers that use Epic. It allows providers to query for and 
retrieve health information resulting from episodes of care delivered in other, non-
local facilities using Epic’s EHR in document format.



19

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

Development in core services and programs:

• Significant progress has been made on the Oregon HIT Program, detailed in the 
previous strategic plan, which includes operational programs, such OMMUTAP and 
CareAccord, and the following four core services in development. These efforts are 
expected to launch in 2018:

 » Oregon’s  Common Credentialing Program, a legislatively mandated program 
and database to centralize the process of obtaining and verifying Oregon 
health care practitioner credentialing information.  This program will provide 
administrative efficiencies and reduce burden for approximately 55,000 
Oregon practitioners and more than 300 credentialing organizations.

 » A statewide Provider Directory, critical to supporting HIE, analytics and 
population management, accountability efforts and operational efficiencies.

 » A Clinical Quality Metrics Registry (CQMR) to capture clinical quality metrics 
from electronic health records, with an initial focus on required CCO EHR-
based quality metric reporting and Medicaid EHR Incentive Program reporting.

 » The HIE Onboarding Program to leverage significant federal matching funds to 
support onboarding critical Medicaid providers to robust community HIEs.

Advancing HIT for behavioral health:

• OHA and other stakeholders have worked to improve access to the state’s 
Prescription Drug Monitoring Program specialized registry, which contains 
information on controlled substances/opioid prescription fills. A new HIT  
gateway service will allow EHRs and other HIT systems, including HIEs and EDIE, 
to connect directly to the PDMP database and provide actionable data within a 
prescriber’s workflow.

• Through federal ONC cooperative agreement funding, Reliance eHealth 
Collaborative, has worked to address barriers to information sharing and care 
coordination across settings, particularly for behavioral health data, by developing 
a common consent model. Additional work to further convene stakeholders and 
disseminate learnings is underway.

Challenges
Despite progress, significant challenges with HIT remain:

The health care ecosystem continues to evolve rapidly, especially in  
regards to alternative payment models:

• Payment and quality reform efforts continue to grow: Efforts such as  
primary care payment reform (including CPC+ and the Primary Care Payment 
Reform Collaborative), CMS’s Quality Payment Program (MIPS and APMs),  
federal and state health care financing uncertainty, and evolving technology 



20

all contribute to a dynamic and uncertain future that makes planning for and 
investment in HIT challenging. 

• Changing payment models require new technology and measurement: New 
payment models that promote coordinated care and incentivize health outcomes 
are growing. However, measuring, tracking and reporting on outcomes remain a 
challenge. In addition, many providers are still paid, at least in part, with fee-for-
service models, complicating and confusing efforts and needs. 

• Myriad unaligned metrics and reporting requirements create difficulties: 
Providers and health systems face a daunting number of reporting requirements 
across health plans, Medicare, Medicaid, and pay-for-performance programs. 
Reporting metrics and other data often require reporting many similar, but not 
identical, pieces of information. Changing and unaligned federal, state and payer 
efforts mean providers are often trying to address different measures for different 
programs. This lack of alignment increases administrative burdens and provider 
frustration and reduces comparability of data.

• Aggregating and analyzing clinical data can be challenging for some CCOs, 
health plans and health systems: Aggregating clinical data across different 
EHRs is a specialized technical skill set. With varying levels of capacity for HIT 
and analytics work, some stakeholders have developed or purchased tools that 
work well for their specific needs, while others have not.

Users face very real technology burdens, which may impede new HIT efforts

• Practices continue to face many technology challenges: Upgrading to certified 
EHR technology, adapting to new payment models and meeting requirements on 
Meaningful Use activities are all occurring simultaneously. Multiple metrics and 
reporting requirements demanded by different payers and programs also create  
a significant administrative burden for many providers. 

• Providers must adopt and use EHRs, HIT and HIE services to see the 
benefits: Providers will need support and technical assistance to integrate 
information technology into their workflow. There will also be increased demand 
for knowledgeable staff who can adapt to new technology and implement new 
workflows that maximize the benefits of HIT services. Training and retention of 
qualified staff is an additional concern.

• Providers face challenges with EHR usability: Small providers are constrained 
by the “out-of-the-box” capabilities provided in their EHRs. They have limited 
financial ability to customize their EHRs to produce metrics and reporting. For 
example, 2015 Edition certification criteria call for EHRs to generate reports in 
the Quality Document Reporting Architecture (QRDA) format without subsequent 
developer assistance. However, implementation of EHRs certified to the new 
standards is not yet widespread enough to evaluate success. In addition, the 



21

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

ability to produce high-quality, accurate data for each metric relies on the 
workflow and processes that ensure providers are entering appropriate data  
into the relevant fields of their EHR.

• Translating data into action: Providers are ready for information that allows them 
to better understand and manage their patient panels. However, the ability to 
translate metrics into practice improvements and/or to target patients needing 
care varies among providers and can depend on the utility of the reported data. 
Having excellent analysis of performance data, trends and benchmarking are of 
little use if providers are not able to take action or change practices to realize 
improvements. Health systems, CCOs and health plans also vary in their ability  
to work with practices and target their resources.

HIE efforts remain fragmented and uneven:

• Health information exchange is unconnected: HIE efforts are still limited by 
separate networks that are unable to share information effectively, and significant 
gaps remain, especially with regards to geography and access to resources. 
Technical barriers and a lack of standards adoption also create difficulty in 
establishing connections. 

• HIT efforts must be inclusive of settings, including those focused on 
addressing social determinants of health: Behavioral health, oral health, long-
term services and supports, corrections, supported housing and social services 
must all be included in HIT efforts to achieve health systems transformation, but 
most of these providers face significant financial and technological barriers.

• Sustainability is challenging: Although the benefits of HIT infrastructure are 
of interest to many stakeholders, many are reluctant to invest without clear 
demonstration of value and return on investment. At the same time, for many 
services, participation by a critical mass of providers is needed to realize the 
return on investment.

• Risk of unintended consequences: The addition of new HIT services, however 
well-intentioned, could inadvertently contribute to information overload. For 
example, alerts designed to call attention to important information about a patient 
are useful only if the provider can act on the information. “Alert fatigue” can 
occur when a provider is overwhelmed by the volume of messages and begins to 
ignore them. 

• Data ownership and challenges with sharing: The expansion of HIT has created 
new tension around data ownership, responsibility, investments in data cleaning 
and maintenance, and organizations’ competitive advantage around information. 
The intersection of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 
(HIPAA) with other privacy protections, such as 42 CFR Part 2, can create 
uncertainty about what information can be shared and how. Questions may 



22

arise regarding who owns and can access the data. Protecting patient privacy 
and assuring security are paramount when working with patient information. 
Successful HIE will require addressing concerns of data blocking and ensuring 
information is available where needed while ensuring sustainable business 
models for infrastructure and exchange efforts..

Patient access and control remains challenging:

• Many patients still do not have access to their electronic health information. 
Those that do often have to access it through multiple unconnected portals. This 
is a particular challenge for patients with complex or chronic illnesses as well  
as for family members and others who support patients.

• The spread of HIE has particular implications for sensitive information, such 
as mental health, substance abuse and health data that may be connected 
with a particular setting (for instance, a county jail). HIE efforts should include 
considerations of patient choice and ability to control access to information.

• Incorporation of additional sources of data, such as those connected with the 
social determinants of health and those from HIPAA non-covered entities,  
raises additional concerns around privacy, stigma and rules surrounding  
sharing between organizations.



23

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

ROLES IN ACHIEVING HIT-OPTIMIZED HEALTH CARE

The state’s role
The state plays a central role in coordinating efforts, leveraging funding opportunities 
and ensuring that all Oregonians can benefit from HIT-optimized care. Oregon also 
recognizes that local and private efforts play important roles in the adoption of HIT. In 
addition, the launch of the HIT Commons as a public-private partnership will create a 
period of transition as roles are developed and established. The state envisions that 
some of its work, where appropriate, may transition over time to the HIT Commons.  
(See Section 6 for additional information.)

The state has three primary levels of involvement: coordinating, standardizing,  
and providing:

The state will coordinate and support community and organizational  
HIT efforts. 

• Recognizing that HIT and HIE efforts must be in place locally to achieve a vision 
of HIT-optimized health care, the state can support, facilitate, inform, convene 
and offer guidance to providers, communities, and organizations engaged in HIT. 

• The state will use stakeholder groups such as HITOC, the HIE/ HIT Community 
and Organizational Panel (HCOP), other advisory groups, and ongoing 
environmental scan efforts to monitor the landscape, understand changes 
in the environment, develop or refine strategies and adjust efforts or make 
recommendations. 

• The state will support the onboarding of critical physical health, behavioral health 
and oral health providers to community HIEs to improve care coordination and 
help Medicaid providers meet Meaningful Use requirements.

• The state will publish and share information about the use and adoption of HIT 
and HIE across Oregon to promote accountability, demonstrate progress and 
inform future action.

The state will align requirements and establish standards to promote 
statewide HIE.

• To ensure that health information can be seamlessly shared, aggregated 
and used, the state is in a unique position to establish standards and align 
requirements around interoperability, privacy and security. The state will rely on 
already established national standards where they exist. 

• The state will use contracting opportunities related to CCOs to promote and 
support the use of HIT to advance Medicaid objectives.



24

• The state will promote the use and adoption of HIT through regulatory levers, 
such as the PCPCH standards.

• The state will work to align metrics and reporting to encourage HIT use and 
reduce administrative burden.

• The state will support the expansion of CQM reporting through electronic  
means to enable effective alternative payment models and promote population 
health efforts

The state will provide a set of HIT technology and services. 

• As described more fully in Section 4: The path to statewide HIE, new and 
existing state-level services connect and support community and organizational 
HIT efforts where they exist, fill gaps where these efforts do not exist, and 
ensure all providers on a care team have a means to participate in basic  
sharing of information needed to coordinate care.

• The state will leverage governance and funding opportunities, such as co-
sponsoring EDIE and PreManage and supporting the deployment of an HIT  
PMP Gateway. 

• The Oregon HIT Program will include enabling infrastructure and services, such 
as the Provider Directory, CareAccord and the CQMR, provide funding for EHR 
adoption and HIE onboarding, and offer technical assistance and support to 
assist providers in adopting and using HIT.

Role of other key stakeholders
All Oregonians have a stake in achieving HIT-optimized health care. Making the vision 
a reality will require participation, investment and support from all of Oregon’s health 
care partners. Health plans, CCOs, community and organizational HIEs, health systems, 
providers and individuals have the following roles to play: 

Health plans and CCOs:

• Support and encourage participation in programs that call for the use of HIT 
tools to improve care, such as the Oregon Medicaid EHR Incentive Program, 
CMS’s MACRA Quality Payment Program (MIPS or Advanced APM track), and 
the multi-payer CPC+ initiative. 

• Support and facilitate provider use of EHRs and HIE opportunities.

• Align quality reporting requirements around common sets of clinical quality 
metrics endorsed by the Oregon Health Plan Quality Metrics Committee. Build 
toward use of national standards, such as the QRDA EHR certification criteria. 



25

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

• Invest in technology and processes to use aggregated clinical metrics data for 
effective population management, performance monitoring and creation of new 
payment models to reward outcomes rather than old models of paying for visits, 
and share data back to providers in usable formats.

• Work with health systems, providers and technical assistance resources to 
ensure the credibility and quality of clinical data generated from EHRs.

• Encourage and empower patient and provider relationships via electronic 
interaction with health information, leveraging patient portals and exploring  
new tools.

Health systems, hospitals and providers: 

• Adopt and use HIT. This includes: 

 » Pursuing Meaningful Use of certified EHR technology (particularly for 
providers eligible for EHR program incentive payments)/Advancing Care 
Information (particularly for providers participating in the Merit-based 
Incentive Payment System), and incorporating the use of technology into 
workflows

 » Participating in HIE across organizational and technological boundaries via 
Direct secure messaging and community, organizational and statewide HIE 
efforts

 » Sharing information and engaging in care coordination efforts, such as 
participating in regional HIEs, PreManage and EDIE

 » Engaging with efforts to expand access to public health and other registry 
data, including immunization registries, the PDMP and Physician Orders for 
Life-Sustaining Treatment (POLST)

 » Including all members of the care team in coordination and sharing 
information, including physical, behavioral health, dental, long-term care and 
social services partners.

• Ensure EHRs meet current certification requirements that enable EHRs to 
produce clinical quality metrics, generate and report on clinical metrics data, 
implement workflow changes that may be needed to ensure quality of data, and 
make practice changes and target patients for interventions based on metrics 
and analysis of practice performance

• Participate in programs that leverage investments in HIT, such as CMS’s Quality 
Payment Program and CPC+ initiative, the Oregon PCPCH program, and CCBHC



26

• Work with health plans, CCOs and technical assistance resources to ensure the 
credibility and quality of clinical data generated from EHRs

• Educate, engage and empower individuals through access to their health 
information. The providers have the primary relationship with individuals (and 
often their families).

Regional HIEs:

• Connect with other HIEs to create a Network of Networks that supports the 
exchange of information across vendor systems and organizational boundaries.

• Promote the use of HIE within provider workflows.

• Assist providers in extracting metrics and using data to improve care.

• Connect critical providers to address gaps in HIE.

Individuals:

• Expect that providers have electronic access to their patient information, inform 
their providers where to access patient-generated information (such as personal 
health records), and seek to engage in their care and outcomes.



27

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

THE PATH TO STATEWIDE HIE COVERAGE

Goals for statewide HIE
To achieve the goals of HIT-optimized care, the state will work to ensure statewide 
coverage of HIE. To that end, three goals specific to HIE have been developed:

1. Oregonians have their core health information available wherever they receive 
care statewide.

2. HIE is meaningful to providers, takes into account usability and workflow and 
prioritizes high-value use cases.

3. HIE supports the coordinated care model, patient engagement and other 
alternative payment models.

Principles of statewide HIE
These goals are further guided by the following principles of HIE that will guide 
implementation strategies:

Democratize the data: 

• Patients have a right to have their key health data available to their care team  
to support continuity of care, safety and quality.

Establish minimums (not maximums) and work to “raise all boats”:

• Set minimum specs for provider participation

• Avoid caps or disincentives that would hinder more robust and sophisticated uses

Set rules of the road for data sharing/use and ensure trust:

• Contributors need to clearly know how their data will be used and how decisions 
will be made. Organizations will want clarity on data uses and clear rules of the 
road to have trust and participate 

• Set guard rails for uses of data that protect trust and encourage use

• Rules must ensure mechanisms for accountability and dispute resolution 

Be Inclusive: 

• Successful exchange will require everyone to participate—“all in.”

• Particular attention is required for gaps in HIE, especially those due to resource 
limitations and geography

Consider provider workflow and use cases:

• Focus on high-value use cases, and incorporate solutions into workflows 



28

A governance role is needed:

• Competition makes coordination and collaboration difficult. A neutral entity  
of trust is required to align efforts and ensure that data is available for 
appropriate use.

High-value use cases to guide efforts
Health information exchange encompasses myriad efforts and technologies, with each 
offering different levels of connectivity, robusticity, and complexity. To best leverage 
existing investments and new opportunities, efforts will focus on identifying high-value 
use cases to guide strategies for statewide coverage of HIE. Several high-value use 
cases have already been identified, including:

• Exchange of care summaries: providing relevant, timely information about care 
a patient receives. Basic care summary exchange already occurs in a variety 
of ways, and future work will focus on integrating across technology systems 
and better integrating into provider workflow. As national HIE frameworks (such 
as Carequality, Commonwell, and eHealth Exchange) spread across Oregon 
providers, care summary exchange should significantly increase.

• Closed loop e-referrals: sending referral information from a coordinating 
provider to a specialty provider, hospital, behavioral health organization or other 
entity and then receiving information about the results of the visit or service to 
incorporate into the plan of care. Future needs may also include interfacing with 
social services agencies, supported housing and other support services.

• Complex care coordination: providing seamless and up-to-date information 
about a patient across a care team, which may include physicians, care 
managers, specialists and other support organizations.

• Alert notifications: capturing information about transitions of care or service and 
communicating them to the right people at the right time. Alert notifications for 
hospitalization and ED visits are already available through the EDIE Utility and 
PreManage service. These efforts could expand to include transitions in and out 
of post-acute care facilities and correctional institutions, or service information, 
such as visits to primary care or a social services agency.

• Data for alternative payment models: providers and payers’ need for 
increased access to the right information at the right time. This includes clinical 
information for care coordination purposes, clinical metrics for quality and 
payment purposes, and information needed for population health and practice 
improvement efforts.



29

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

Each of these use cases features specific and differing stakeholders, workflows 
and underlying technology requirements. By focusing efforts on use cases, the right 
stakeholders can come together, and the right technological and technical solutions can 
develop to improve care communication and coordination.

A number of models have been considered to provide statewide HIE, including a robust 
HIE-led model and a robust enabling-infrastructure model. HITOC recognizes previous 
and ongoing investments in technology and infrastructure by the state and health care 
stakeholders, a diversity of needs, and a desire to remain flexible amid changing delivery 
and payment landscapes and, as a result, has determined a robust HIE model with a 
lightweight enabling infrastructure supported with baseline services is the right path 
forward at this time. 

In this model, providers, hospitals, health systems, health plans and other health 
care users connect primarily through a robust HIE network that facilitates exchange. 
Statewide enabling infrastructure will focus on helping these robust HIE networks share 
information, such as the Provider Directory that helps locate providers and organizations. 
Some lightweight services are also provided to fill gaps and address barriers such as a 
lack of resources or incomplete access to data..

Use cases 

• Referrals

• Alerts

• Records request

• Complex care coordination

Main stakeholders/
participants 

• Hospitals

• Physical health providers

• Behavioral health 
organizations

• Oral health providers

• CCOs

• Health plans

• Long-term services and 
supports

• Social services and 
supported housing 
agencies

Types of exchange/ 
efforts  

• Direct secure messaging

• Regional HIEs

• EDIE/ PreManage

• Expanded notifications

• Vendor-led efforts (e.g., 
Care Everywhere)

• National efforts (e.g., 
Carequality, Commonwell, 
eHealth Exchange)



30

In developing this model, HITOC considered the feasibility of more robust statewide 
services, as well the continuation of the status quo. It was determined that robust 
networks of HIE, connected together, offered the right value, risk and likelihood 
to provide the necessary level of HIE. HITOC will monitor the spread of robust 
HIE networks, as well as technology changes and evolving needs, and make 
recommendations or adjustments going forward.

  

DRAFT FOR REVIEW: Oregon’s Strategic Plan for HIT and HIE (2017-2020), August 2017 26 
 

 
A number of models have been considered to provide statewide HIE, including a robust HIE-led model 
and a robust enabling-infrastructure model. HITOC recognizes previous and ongoing investments in 
technology and infrastructure by the state and health care stakeholders, a diversity of needs, and a 
desire to remain flexible amid changing delivery and payment landscapes and, as a result, has 
determined a robust HIE model with a lightweight enabling infrastructure supported with baseline 
services is the right path forward at this time.  
 
In this model, providers, hospitals, health systems, health plans and other health care users connect 
primarily through a robust HIE network that facilitates exchange. Statewide enabling infrastructure will 
focus on helping these robust HIE networks share information, such as the Provider Directory that helps 
locate providers and organizations. Some lightweight services are also provided to fill gaps and address 
barriers such as a lack of resources or incomplete access to data.   
  

 
 
In developing this model, HITOC considered the feasibility of more robust statewide services, as well the 
continuation of the status quo. It was determined that robust networks of HIE, connected together, 
offered the right value, risk and likelihood to provide the necessary level of HIE. HITOC will monitor the 
spread of robust HIE networks, as well as technology changes and evolving needs, and make 
recommendations or adjustments going forward.  
 

Approaches to achieve statewide HIE 
 

1. Supporting and connecting robust networks of HIEs 

Commented [GM15]: Dan change: 
*Services/programs in development [no space between / and 
programs]; 
Physicians and clinics [e places] 
PMP Gateway* 
State data sources 
Chang * to “Note:” in the bottom line. 



31

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

Approaches to achieve statewide HIE
1. Supporting and connecting robust networks of HIEs

2. Providing baseline services to those facing barriers

3. Offering statewide enabling infrastructure to leverage existing investments and 
opportunities

4. Providing access to high-value data sources

5. Coordinating stakeholders to establish a shared governance model

The following approaches will guide strategies and efforts:

1. Supporting and connecting robust network of HIEs

Various local efforts have emerged to offer HIE solutions, including community 
health information exchange organizations (HIEs) and health system-led HIE 
efforts. Each effort varies in the sophistication, types and degree of information 
shared, and connectivity with outside sources (including national exchange 
efforts). Significant gaps still exist in the availability and usefulness of HIE efforts. 

HIE Onboarding Program: The HIE Onboarding Program will support the initial 
costs of onboarding priority Medicaid providers to a community-based HIE 
that provides meaningful HIE opportunities and plays a vital role for Medicaid 
in that community. It may also support participating community-based HIEs in 
connecting to the Network of Networks including HIE-enabling infrastructure, 
statewide services and other connections, as described in this strategic plan, 
that create value for priority Medicaid providers. 

The initial phase of the program will focus on promoting integrated care. 
Therefore, priority Medicaid providers for that phase will be Medicaid behavioral 
health, oral health and critical physical health providers including county 
corrections health. The program will also incentivize early onboarding of major 
trading partners to help create value for other priority Medicaid providers. Later 
phases of the program will likely include long-term services and supports, social 
services and other organizations that focus on the social determinants of health 
as priorities.

The state will also continue to convene stakeholders, such as HITOC and 
the HIE Community and Organizational Panel (HCOP) workgroup, to monitor 
and support the development of HIEs, share best practices and collectively 
resolve challenges. Grant funding and other support will also be sought to build 
additional connectivity and functionality of HIEs.

While significant progress has been made to develop and build HIE networks 
across the state, challenges remain, particularly in communicating across 



32

different HIE networks. A Network of Networks model envisions collaborative 
work around establishing common rules of the road, developing requisite 
technical and legal frameworks, and developing and/or adopting enabling 
infrastructure to support cross-network exchange.

Key functions of the Network of Networks

• Coordinating and convening key stakeholders to develop the necessary  
trust framework, including legal and data use agreements, policies and 
dispute resolution approaches.

• Identifying and implementing needed infrastructure to facilitate exchange.

• Ensuring interoperability to improve the use and value of information 
exchanged, while enabling seamless use of state services that rely on  
data and technology residing in multiple organizations.

• Ensuring privacy and security practices are in place.

• Providing neutral issue resolution.

• Monitoring environmental, technical and regulatory changes and adapting 
as needed.

2. Baseline services and supports to those facing barriers

The state will provide baseline services to address gaps and support providers 
facing barriers. These barriers could include resource limitations, a lack of 
adequate and effective alternate HIE methods, or geographic challenges. 

Baseline services already in place include:

• CareAccord®: CareAccord is available throughout Oregon, including in 
areas where no community HIEs exist. By offering CareAccord, the state 
provides an option for any provider, with or without an EHR, to access 
electronic health information through Direct secure messaging.

  

DRAFT FOR REVIEW: Oregon’s Strategic Plan for HIT and HIE (2017-2020), August 2017 28 
 

 Monitoring environmental, technical and regulatory changes and adapting as needed. 
 

 

Network of Networks Components and hierarchy

 
2. Baseline services and supports to those facing barriers 

 
The state will provide baseline services to address gaps and support providers facing barriers. These 
barriers could include resource limitations, a lack of adequate and effective alternate HIE methods, or 
geographic challenges.  
 
Baseline services already in place include: 
 

 CareAccord®: CareAccord is available throughout Oregon, including in areas where no 
community HIEs exist. By offering CareAccord, the state provides an option for any provider, 
with or without an EHR, to access electronic health information through Direct secure 
messaging. 

 
 Emergency Department Information Exchange (EDIE) and PreManage: The EDIE Utility is a 

public-private partnership that provides Oregon emergency departments key care summaries 
for patients with high utilization of emergency department services and/or who have been 
identified to have complex care needs with care guidelines. The goal is to reduce unnecessary 
hospital services and improve outcomes. Statewide hospital notifications (ED and inpatient 
admit, discharge and transfer data), through the PreManage program, augment the work under 
EDIE by notifying providers, health plans and care coordinators when their members or patients 
are seen in any Oregon or Washington hospital. EDIE and PreManage services provide critical 
care coordination links between hospitals; critical physical, behavioral and oral health providers; 
tribal clinics; long-term care providers; CCOs; and other payers. Organizations are also using 
data from the service to improve population health and analytics efforts. 

 
 

3. Statewide enabling infrastructure services 
 
Statewide enabling infrastructure services provide core services that facilitate efficient use of HIT and 
information exchange across organizational boundaries, providing the underlying “glue” to tie together 

Governance

Trust framework

Legal Dispute 
resolution

Infrastructure

Connections Services

Technology 
coordination

Monitor and 
adapt Standards



33

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

• Emergency Department Information Exchange (EDIE) and PreManage: 
The EDIE Utility is a public-private partnership that provides Oregon 
emergency departments key care summaries for patients with high 
utilization of emergency department services and/or who have been 
identified to have complex care needs with care guidelines. The goal is to 
reduce unnecessary hospital services and improve outcomes. Statewide 
hospital notifications (ED and inpatient admit, discharge and transfer 
data), through the PreManage program, augment the work under EDIE 
by notifying providers, health plans and care coordinators when their 
members or patients are seen in any Oregon or Washington hospital. EDIE 
and PreManage services provide critical care coordination links between 
hospitals; critical physical, behavioral and oral health providers; tribal 
clinics; long-term care providers; CCOs; and other payers. Organizations 
are also using data from the service to improve population health and 
analytics efforts.

3. Statewide enabling infrastructure services

Statewide enabling infrastructure services provide core services that facilitate 
efficient use of HIT and information exchange across organizational boundaries, 
providing the underlying “glue” to tie together robust networks of HIE with 
baseline services and other efforts. The following services are currently  
being developed:

• Provider Directory services: Provider Directory services are critical 
for several uses: HIE, analytics, state program operations, health plan 
and health system operations, statewide common credentialing efforts 
underway at OHA, public health program operations, and others. Oregon’s 
Provider Directory will be developed in phases, starting with key use cases 
(HIE, common credentialing, etc.) and expanding over time to serve other 
use cases. The Provider Directory will include all types of providers and 
organizations that participate in these use cases, not just physical health 
providers and hospitals. 
 
The Provider Directory services will:

 » Enable lookup of parties (e.g., organizations and individuals) and 
their associated information (e.g., name, postal address, phone 
number, electronic service address for HIE purposes) using identifying 
characteristics. The Provider Directory would identify key affiliations, 
such as individual provider affiliation to their practices, health systems, 
health plans, etc.



34

 » Act as a “router,” and a single lookup point, distributing lookup requests 
to provider directories at community and organizational HIEs and health 
systems and returning aggregated responses.

 » May include core provider data in a central database (e.g., static data 
such as name, demographics, etc.).

• Common credentialing: OHA is mandated to establish a common 
credentialing solution that will provide credentialing organizations 
(hospitals, health systems, health plans, ambulatory surgical centers, etc.) 
access to commonly held information necessary to credential all health 
care practitioners in the state. The goal of this effort is to reduce the 
administrative burden on practitioners and reduce redundancies of the 
credentialing process. Common credentialing and Provider Directory efforts 
have many opportunities for synergies: e.g., common credentialing will 
provide a trusted, robust data source for the Provider Directory.

The last strategic plan (2014–2017) envisioned additional enabling infrastructure. 
These efforts included expanded notifications, a master patient index, record 
locator service and support for query-based exchange. Due to changes in the 
environment and new national exchange efforts, these efforts are not being 
pursued at this time. However, they may still be considered for future needs.  
See “Appendix A: Opportunities for future Investments” for more information.

4. Provide access to high-value data

As one of the largest collectors of data, the state is uniquely positioned to 
support and augment HIE efforts. High-value data managed by the state  
includes public health reporting data, including immunizations, opioid  
prescription fills, emergency medical services (EMS) events and outcomes,  
and specialized registries such as Physician Orders for Life-Sustaining  
Treatment (POLST). Current efforts to promote data access and sharing  
include bi-directional interfaces between HIT systems and public health  
gateways and pilots to support integration between the POLST registry and 
POLST electronic reporting interfaces. The state is also exploring ways to  
share social determinants of health data to improve care coordination and 
upstream interventions.

PMP Gateway: The Prescription Drug Monitoring Program is a specialized 
registry that contains crucial opioid prescription fill information. Previously, 
access to PDMP data was limited to a web portal that was burdensome to  
many prescribers’ workflow. OHA has worked to connect the PDMP database 
to a cloud-based gateway that will improve access and usability of the data. 
Approved prescribers will be able to access PDMP data on their patients from 
within their EHR system without logging into a separate portal.  In addition, 



35

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

PDMP data will be available through EDIE alerts when certain criteria are met. 
Future envisioned efforts include establishing a shared funding model to improve 
access and lower costs to connecting to the PMP Gateway.

5. Coordinate stakeholders and establish shared governance model

The key enabler to statewide coverage of HIE will be coordinating various efforts 
and using enabling infrastructure in a cohesive way. A shared public-private 
governance model, described next, will leverage this opportunity.



36

THE HIT COMMONS: A PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP 
GOVERNANCE MODEL

Background on HIT governance efforts
Developing a public-private partnership to govern statewide HIT efforts has been 
on HITOC’s strategic roadmap from the beginning.  In 2010, a strategy work group 
convened by HITOC determined that Oregon’s governance model should take a phased 
approach to developing a public utility with government oversight. In the first phase, the 
state would support existing community and organizational HIT efforts by providing HIE 
policies, requirements, standards and agreements. The work group anticipated that a 
financial sustainability plan and necessary legislation would allow for a second phase 
in which a state-designated HIT entity would be created. The entity could serve as the 
central contracting point for community and organizational HIT efforts and act as the 
accrediting body by implementing the policies developed in the first phase. 

The 2014 HIT Taskforce confirmed the phased approach to developing a public-private 
governance model. In 2015, legislation passed that allowed OHA to participate formally 
in such a governance entity. It allowed the state to transition any or all of the Oregon HIT 
Program to the governance entity if doing so was in the best interests of the state.

In 2015, the EDIE Utility formed to provide statewide hospital event notifications. A 
key success of the EDIE Utility was OHLC’s and OHA’s sponsorship and all Oregon 
hospitals’, major payers’, CCOs’ and OHA’s participation under a shared governance 
model. The model provided for representation, shared financing, and agreements for 
participation and use of the data and infrastructure.  

Developing a HIT Commons
Building upon the success of the EDIE Utility, OHA and OHLC, in collaboration with 
other key stakeholders, have begun developing a public-private governance model 
and business plan. Through extensive listening sessions, several key themes and 
opportunities for a shared governance model emerged around coordinating HIE efforts, 
spreading HIT progress and creating sustainable funding mechanisms for shared 
investments. 

The HIT Commons will be established as an umbrella governance structure initially 
under OHLC, with a transition to a separate legal entity over time. The HIT Commons 
will include decision making based on common principles and expectations; a base 
funding model to support umbrella governance and a select scope of initial projects; and 
clear criteria for selecting future projects to be funded and staffed as they are initiated.

Initial work of the new HIT Commons will focus on continuing the successful work of 
EDIE and OHLC’s Administration Simplification committee (including single sign-on 
work), providing funding for statewide access to the  HIT PMP Gateway, and beginning 
work to coordinate the Network of Networks for HIE.



37

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

Organizational model and key considerations
The HIT Commons will take a “crawl, walk, run” approach to launch. The initial HIT 
Commons entity will be based on the EDIE governance model, with the OHLC acting as 
a fiscal agent and management contractor. Over 12–18 months, the entity is expected to 
transition to a stand-alone nonprofit organization.

Key guiding principles include:

• Democratize the data — common data set shared.

• “Raise all Boats” — establish minimums (vs. maximums).

• Inclusive — work to ensure “all in” or critical mass.

• Work for common or public good.

• Spread HIT successes.

• Set rules of the road for data sharing — guard rails to promote trust.

• Create transparency — how and why decisions are made.

• Identify and communicate value.

Stakeholder representation on the HIT Commons will be balanced and include OHA; 
health plans and CCOs; hospitals and health systems, physicians; OAHHS; behavioral 
and oral health providers; and social services agencies.

The relationship between HITOC and the HIT Commons is still being refined and may 
shift over time. Currently, it is envisioned that HITOC will be responsible for setting 
overall HIT strategy and monitor broad efforts and programs, including the progress 
and effectiveness of the HIT Commons. The HIT Commons, in turn, will take a primary 
role in implementing key strategies. The HIT Commons will also provide monitoring and 
accountability for its projects and initiatives. Description of the potential HIT governance 
“galaxy” follows.

  

DRAFT FOR REVIEW: Oregon’s Strategic Plan for HIT and HIE (2017-2020), August 2017 32 
 

The HIT Commons will take a “crawl, walk, run” approach to launch. The initial HIT Commons entity will 
be based on the EDIE governance model, with the OHLC acting as a fiscal agent and management 
contractor. Over 12–18 months, the entity is expected to transition to a stand-alone nonprofit 
organization. 

–  
 
 
Key guiding principles include: 
 

 Democratize the data –– common data set shared. 
 “Raise all Boats” –– establish minimums (vs. maximums). 
 Inclusive –– work to ensure “all in” or critical mass. 
 Work for common or public good. 
 Spread HIT successes. 
 Set rules of the road for data sharing –– guard rails to promote trust. 
 Create transparency –– how and why decisions are made. 
 Identify and communicate value. 

 
Stakeholder representation on the HIT Commons will be balanced and include OHA; health plans and 
CCOs; hospitals and health systems, physicians; OAHHS; behavioral and oral health providers; and social 
services agencies. 
 
The relationship between HITOC and the HIT Commons is still being refined and may shift over time. 
Currently, it is envisioned that HITOC will be responsible for setting overall HIT strategy and monitor 
broad efforts and programs, including the progress and effectiveness of the HIT Commons. The HIT 
Commons, in turn, will take a primary role in implementing key strategies. The HIT Commons will also 
provide monitoring and accountability for its projects and initiatives. Description of the potential HIT 
governance “galaxy” follows. 
 

In
iti

al
 p

ha
se 1. EDIE Utility 

Governance 
expanded for 
initial HIT 
Commons 
governance.
- Continue to 
leverage OHLC as 
fiscal agent, 
management staff.

W
ith

in
 6

--1
8 

m
on

th
s 2. Establish new 

501(c)(3) and 
Board, with 
management 
contractor for 
staffing.
- OHLC may provide 
“speed to launch” as 
management 
contractor.

Af
te

r 1
--3

 y
ea

rs Anticipate 
transition to next 
iteration.
- This could include 
hired staff.

Glide path to more formal structure 



38

Potential Health IT Governance “Galaxy”

Coordination and clarity of roles between the HIT Commons, OHA and HITOC is key.  
In summary:

• HIT Commons will serve as a neutral convener and be responsible for 
governing the execution of strategies and work to advance HIT in Oregon. The 
HIT Commons may receive recommendations from HITOC (or other entities) 
based on HITOC’s strategic or policy work and may refer issues to HITOC or 
other entities. However, each entity will maintain independence in choosing what 
action to take based on the referral or recommendation.

 » OHLC will serve as the managing partner and fiscal agent of the HIT 
Commons initially. Responsibilities include contracting, convening, staffing, 
coordinating, communicating and project managing the HIT Commons.

• HITOC serves as the public oversight body under the authority of the Oregon 
Health Policy Board and is aligned with Oregon’s Health System Transformation 
(HST) efforts. 

 » HITOC has three advisory groups that report to it: the Provider Directory 
Advisory Committee (PDAC), the Common Credentialing Advisory Group 
(CCAG) and the HIT/HIE Community and Organizational Panel (HCOP).

• OHA is responsible for the state’s Medicaid objectives and health system 
transformation efforts and is accountable to the Governor’s Office and the 
Oregon Legislature. The Office of HIT (OHIT) is responsible for statewide HIT 

  

DRAFT FOR REVIEW: Oregon’s Strategic Plan for HIT and HIE (2017-2020), August 2017 33 
 

 
 
Coordination and clarity of roles between the HIT Commons, OHA and HITOC is key. In summary:  

 HIT Commons will serve as a neutral convener and be responsible for governing the execution 
of strategies and work to advance HIT in Oregon. The HIT Commons may receive 
recommendations from HITOC (or other entities) based on HITOC’s strategic or policy work and 
may refer issues to HITOC or other entities. However, each entity will maintain independence in 
choosing what action to take based on the referral or recommendation. 

o OHLC will serve as the managing partner and fiscal agent of the HIT Commons initially. 
Responsibilities include contracting, convening, staffing, coordinating, communicating 
and project managing the HIT Commons. 

 HITOC serves as the public oversight body under the authority of the Oregon Health Policy 
Board and is aligned with Oregon’s Health System Transformation (HST) efforts.  

o HITOC has three advisory groups that report to it: the Provider Directory Advisory 
Committee (PDAC), the Common Credentialing Advisory Group (CCAG) and the HIT/HIE 
Community and Organizational Panel (HCOP). 

 OHA is responsible for the state’s Medicaid objectives and health system transformation efforts 
and is accountable to the Governor’s Office and the Oregon Legislature. The Office of HIT (OHIT) 
is responsible for statewide HIT policy, programs and partnerships that support health system 
transformation.   

o OHIT’s HIT projects are governed by a decision-making group, called the HIT Portfolio 
Executive Steering Committee.   

Commented [GM17]: Dan – change to “Potential health IT 
governance “galaxy” 
Is there room to do a legend here? 

Commented [OS18R17]: See new text below to describe this 
diagram further 



policy, programs and partnerships that support health system transformation.  

 » OHIT’s HIT projects are governed by a decision-making group, called the  
HIT Portfolio Executive Steering Committee.  

 » OHIT is advised by the CCO HIT Advisory Group (HITAG) on its 
implementation of HIT initiatives.

• Private stakeholders are responsible for executing HIT initiatives, achieving the 
value proposition of HIT initiatives and informing the development of statewide 
policy and HIT Commons operations.

A formal business plan for the HIT Commons has been developed by OHA and 
OHLC through an interim advisory group in summer 2017 (see http://www.
orhealthleadershipcouncil.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/HIT-Commons-Business-
Plan-FINAL-9-2-17.pdf).



40

TECHNOLOGY NEEDED FOR ALTERNATIVE  
PAYMENT MODELS

Central to health systems transformation is the move from fee-for-service payment 
models to ones based on outcomes and effectiveness. This has created an opportunity 
for improved HIE/HIT for several purposes:

• Quality measurement

• Care coordination and care gaps identification

• Population health management and risk stratification

• Expanded data collection, especially around social determinants of health and 
other critical, non-medical information

To reward value, alternative payment models (APMs) require gathering timely 
performance information and communicating them between providers, payers and 
regulatory bodies. With an increasing focus on quality measurement, measures have 
proliferated. For measurement to become more meaningful and less burdensome, 
alignment is necessary on measure sets, specifications and measure collection. 

HIT plays a key role in quality measurement. Electronic Clinical Quality Measures 
(eCQMs), which include process and outcomes measures used to measure the current 
quality of patient care and identify opportunities for improvement, are generated from 
providers’ EHRs. Ideally, the necessary data should be captured as part of the providers’ 
regular workflow (e.g., when lab results are received or when patients’ vitals are taken), 
but a frustration with current measures is that extra steps are often required to capture 
the data.

Needs for quality data:

Health plans, CCOs, health systems and providers all need CQMs to achieve the triple 
aim of better health, better care and lower costs. 

Provider-level uses: Point–of-care providers and the care team need actionable CQMs, 
alerts and other patient-level information to look across their patient panels and identify 
care needs. These tools allow providers to identify patients who have gaps in care 
(e.g., missing recommended screenings), are at risk for poor outcomes (e.g., missing 
follow-up visits after hospitalization or being outliers within their chronic care cohorts) 
or have other signs of needing additional, proactive care. Clinical quality measures can 
provide insight into areas of success and areas for improvement. To be most useful for 
providers, these data and metrics should include the ability to drill down to the patient 
level so patient follow-up and practice changes can occur. 



41

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

Management-level uses: Health plans, CCOs, health systems and providers need CQMs 
and data to:

• Ensure quality: Identify, monitor and improve quality of care.

• Manage populations: Identify and manage their patients/populations effectively.

• Pay differently: Transform care delivery via new payment models based on 
paying for value and health outcomes rather than visits.

To be most useful for management-level users, these data and metrics should be 
collected frequently enough to demonstrate the impact of new delivery care models and 
help identify where resources and course corrections could yield better outcomes.

Policy-level uses: The state monitors population health and seeks to ensure value in the 
health care delivery system. Data that are particularly relevant at the policy level may 
include provider or management-level metrics/ Data may also include less frequently 
collected indicators, such as patient satisfaction surveys.

Efforts to advance HIT for alternative payment models
In addition to supporting HIE that can support access to critical clinical information 
available to payers and providers engaged in new payment models, the following five 
efforts support the HIT needed for these models as well.  HITOC will explore these 
strategies and others as APMs spread across Oregon’s payers and providers in the 
coming years.

Leveraging national standards and Medicaid EHR incentives 

The state will use available levers to promote participation in the Oregon Medicaid EHR 
incentive programs. As programs evolve, the state will monitor and share information, 
e.g., the EHR certification standards embedded in federal requirements for the MIPS 
and CCPC+. Where relevant to Oregon’s interests, the state will advocate nationally for 
standards and policy that further the ability of providers to seamlessly report clinical 
quality metrics from their EHRs. Where appropriate, the state will provide information for 
EHR vendors regarding state reporting requirements and convene stakeholders to help 
collectively voice concerns.

Assessing changing environments and convening stakeholders 

The state will monitor and report on how EHR vendors adapt to new 2015 Edition 
certification standards (required for use in 2018 CMS programs) and how new EHRs 
meet clinical quality metrics and reporting needs.

Align metrics and reporting 

The state will use available levers to align metrics and reporting requirements across 
Oregon. The new Health Plan Quality Metrics Committee, created under SB 440 (2015), 
is charged with measure alignment.



42

Clinical Quality Metrics Registry: 

The state will procure a Clinical Quality Metrics Registry with the ability to collect and 
aggregate key clinical quality data for the Medicaid program, develop benchmarks and 
other quality improvement reporting and calculate clinical quality metrics. Initially, the 
CQMR will support reporting for two needs: electronic Health Record (EHR)-based CQMs 
from CCOs and electronic CQMs from eligible professionals in Oregon’s Medicaid EHR 
Incentive Program.  

The CQMR will collect data that enable deeper analysis than possible with current 
submissions. As providers build capacity to submit patient-level clinical quality measure 
data in a national standard (QRDA I), the CQMR will provide a glide path to increasingly 
collect data in that format. This will enable OHA to identify, understand and target efforts 
to address disparities in care for Medicaid patients.

Over time, the CQMR can support a “report once” approach in which providers submit 
single reports to the CQMR to meet multiple reporting needs. The CQMR is a step in an 
incremental process toward this reduction in administrative burdens of reporting. The 
process begins with building agreement on the data collection point. Building alignment 
on measure sets and reporting requirements will take time. Although OHA does not 
have authority to change reporting requirements for every program, it will work toward 
alignment where possible and consistent with program purposes.

Technical assistance to Medicaid providers: 

The state has contracted for technical assistance to Medicaid providers in order to 
support EHR adoption and Meaningful Use under the Oregon Medicaid Meaningful Use 
Technical Assistance Program (OMMUTAP). Technical assistance can improve credibility 
of EHR data underlying clinical quality measures, bolstering provider confidence in 
metrics. Other technical assistance programs are also available, and the state has a role 
in helping coordinate efforts and facilitate communication with interested parties.  



43

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

PATIENT ACCESS TO HEALTH INFORMATION

Individuals and their families or caregivers can partner with their providers when they 
are educated and engaged. Increasingly, patients have access to some of their health 
care information through patient portals and other means. Individuals can also be 
empowered to provide some of their own clinical data using remote monitoring devices 
and new applications that allow them to remotely engage with their health care teams. 

With support from OHA and several health care organizations, Oregon has become a 
leader in the OpenNotes initiative, which encourages and supports providers in offering 
electronic access to full clinical notes to their patients. OHA has also supported efforts 
to improve electronic access and exchange of POLST forms between providers and the 
statewide POLST registry.

To reduce gaps in patient access to their health information: 

• Individuals should have access to their complete health record, including 
provider notes, treatments and goals in order to improve their understanding and 
engagement in their health care and outcomes. 

• Individuals should have ways to provide important information into their health 
records, including clinical data and their preferences related to their care, such 
as end-of-life care and POLST forms.

• Individuals should have the capacity to facilitate care management by sharing 
data with their providers. 

• Sufficient safeguards should be in place and be clearly communicated to 
patients so individuals have confidence in the privacy and security of their 
electronic health information.

Efforts to support improved patient engagement through HIT
The state will support community and organizational efforts by:

Promoting EHR adoption and Meaningful Use

The state will use levers, such as promoting the Medicaid EHR Incentive Program, 
to encourage providers to make protected health information available to patients. 
Meaningful Use Stage 3 and MIPS require eligible clinicians to give patients secure, 
electronic access to their health information. 

Leveraging national standards and federal EHR incentives

To inform and support stakeholders, the state will monitor national efforts and 
standards, the evolving personal health record market and direct-to-consumer  
health care.



44

Providing guidance, information and technical assistance

The state will support efforts to make patient information available electronically by 
informing stakeholders, supporting initiatives and seeking to advance Meaningful Use 
requirements for making information available to patients. 

Assessing changing environments and convening stakeholders

The state will identify and disseminate best practices and seek opportunities to explore 
promising approaches. As part of that effort, the state will engage individuals to 
identify opportunities, preferences and barriers around engaging in their health care via 
electronic interaction with their health information. 



45

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

CONCLUSION

The work of creating HIT-optimized health care is not easy. Challenges are plentiful – 
from the burdens on providers struggling to meet multiple HIT changes in a short time, 
to the misaligned incentives still embedded in fee-for-service models, to the danger 
of unintended consequences such as “alert fatigue” resulting from an overwhelming 
volume of incoming information.

The benefits of achieving HIT-optimized health care, however, will be great. In many 
areas, these benefits are already being seen, as improved information sharing supports 
better care coordination and improved health outcomes. As the right HIT services 
become ubiquitous and coordinated across Oregon, more Oregonians will experience 
the advantages of health care supported by timely access to patient information. 
Providers will find it easier to deliver coordinated care. Systems will have the clinical 
outcomes data to enable quality improvement, population management and incentives 
for health promotion. Policymakers will be able to use clinical data for transparency and 
policy development. Oregonians and their families will access and use their own health 
information to be informed and engaged in their own health care.

Providers, systems and individuals all have a stake in making this vision a reality. This 
report outlines steps for the state, health plans, CCOs, community and organizational 
HIEs, health systems, providers and individuals. With all stakeholders working together, 
Oregon can achieve a transformed health care system that is optimized by HIT.



46

APPENDIX A.  
OPPORTUNITIES FOR FUTURE INVESTMENTS

The 2014–2017 Strategic Plan envisioned several efforts as Phase 2.0 services 
developed after the initial rollout of baseline services and infrastructure. Over the past 
three years, changes in technology, health care policy, and stakeholder environments 
created a need to hold on development and reconsider the value and risk of state-led 
investments in these efforts.

Some efforts have been eclipsed by new technologies or efforts. Others, such as 
those listed below, still hold significant value. However, they present high risks to 
implementation or require resources beyond what is currently available. As technology 
and the environment evolve, they will continue to be evaluated for potential adoption.

Enterprise Master Patient Index (eMPI): Patient identity management is a challenge 
for many HIT users. The problem increases when trying to share information across 
organizations. Problems with patient identity can prevent the exchange of information 
or cause information about a different patient to be incorrectly exchanged. The purpose 
of a master patient index is to store demographic and other information about a person 
in order to correctly identify that individual in a care setting. A statewide eMPI could 
provide a single look-up location to determine patient identity and facilitate the exchange 
of patient records across organizations. 

Patient attribution, record locator service and query: A patient attribution service that 
includes provider affiliation services is valuable for several uses: HIE, analytics, state 
program operations, health plan and health system operations, and others. A patient-
provider attribution service would build on a master patient index and Provider Directory 
to create care team relationships and linkages.

Notifications hub: A notifications hub could build on the success of the EDIE alert 
system and include notifications for care visits, specialty interactions, behavioral health 
referrals, development screens, long-term or post-acute care admissions or entry/
release from correctional facilities. These notifications could enhance care coordination, 
improve care management and help identify care gaps for key providers, care managers, 
coordinated care organizations and payers. 



47

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

APPENDIX B.  
PAST WORK AND CONTRIBUTORS

2017 HITOC members

Maili Boynay Information Systems Director Ambulatory Community 
Systems, Legacy Health Systems

Robert (Bob) Brown Retired Advocate, Allies for Healthier Oregon
Erick Doolen Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer  

PacificSource Health Plans
Amy Fellows Executive Director, We Can Do Better
Chuck Fischer Information Technology Director, Advantage Dental
Valerie Fong, RN Chief Nursing Informatics Officer, Providence Health & 

Services
Charles (Bud) Garrison Director of Clinical Informatics, Oregon Health & Science 

University
Brandon Gatke Chief Information Officer, Cascadia Behavioral Healthcare
Amy Henninger, MD Site Medical Director, Multnomah County Health 

Department
Mark Hetz Chief Information Officer, Asante Health System
Sonney Sapra Chief Information Officer, Tuality Healthcare
Greg Van Pelt President, Oregon Health Leadership Council
Steven Vance Director of Information Technology, Lake Health District

2014 HIT Task Force members and staff

HIT Task Force: In the fall of 2013, OHA convened the Health Information Technology 
Task Force (Task Force). Comprised of a wide group of Oregon’s HIT/HIE stakeholders, 
the 19-member Task Force met in five public meetings and a series of smaller 
workgroups between September and November 2013. The Task Force produced the 
2014-2017 Strategic Plan, upon which the current plan is based.

Chair Greg Van Pelt, MHA President, Oregon Health Leadership Council
Anne Alftine, MD Project Coordinator, Jefferson Regional Health Alliance
Ashley Aitken Intern, American Association of Retired Persons
Bill Hurst Director, Information Services, FamilyCare Health plans
Brandon Gatke, MBA Information Technology Director, Cascadia Behavioral 

Healthcare
Chris Senz Director and Chief Operating Officer, Tuality Health Alliance
Chuck Hofmann, MD Physician, St. Alphonsus Medical Group
Daniel Dean Chief Information Officer, Health Share of Oregon



48

Dick Gibson, MD, PhD Vice President, Healthcare Intelligence, Providence Health 
and Services

Erick Doolen* Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer  
PacificSource Health Plans

Glenn Koehrsen, MBA Health Share Community Advisory Council Member
Greg Fraser, MD* Chief Medical Information Officer, Willamette Valley 

Physicians Health Authority
John Kenagy, PhD Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer, 

Legacy Health Systems
Mark Hetz, MBA Chief Information Officer, Asante Health
Mary Dallas, MD Medical Director Clinical Informatics, St. Charles Health 

System, Bend
Mohamed Alyajouri, MPH Director of Quality Improvement and Informatics, The 

Corvallis Clinic
Patrice Korjenek, PhD Chief Performance Officer, Trillium Community Health Plan
Parhez Sattar Sr. Director Information Technology, Grande Ronde 

Hospital
Vaughn Holbrook Director of Government Affairs, Cambia/Regence Blue 

Cross Blue Shield



49

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
PL

AN
fo

r H
ea

lth
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy



Health Policy and Analytics Division
Office of Health Information Technology

This document can be provided upon request in an alternate format for individuals with disabilities or in a language other than 
English for people with limited English skills. To request this publication in another format or language, contact the Office of 
Health Information Technology (OHIT) at 503-373-7859, 711 for TTY, or email HITOC.info@state.or.us.

OHA 9920 (rev. 8/2017)


	1 OHPB DRAFT AGENDA 9517
	1.2 17_0801_OHPB draft Minutes
	1.3 17-18 ohpb long range cal 8417
	2 MAC_guidingprinciples_cover_FINAL
	MAC_Guiding principles for Oregon Medicaid_FINAL.pdf
	Guiding Principles for Oregon Medicaid
	Six Guiding Principles for Oregon Medicaid
	1. Maintain Medicaid’s capacity as a critical support program for diverse subpopulations of low-income and categorically eligible Oregonians
	2. Continue improving and streamlining enrollment processes and avoid barriers to enrollment
	3. Continue to prioritize a patient-centered care model with a focus on all aspects of health and health determinants and primary care at its core
	4. Maintain Oregon’s commitment to integrated health services
	5. Engage consumers, providers, and plans in solutions
	6. Continue to shift the focus upstream



	3.0 OHPB Committee Vis 88137
	3.1 OHPB Highlevel Pharmacy Presentation (002)
	3.2 Health Equity Committee_2017_Slate
	4.0 Sept 2017 OHPB HITOC workplan and memo
	4.1 HITOC Report to OHPB 2
	4.2 HITOC HIT Strategic Plan

